The Seattle School

OF THEOLOGY & PSYCHOLOGY

Academic Catalog

2022-2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PRESIDENT'S GREETING	5
MISSION STATEMENT	6
OUR COMMUNITY AND FACILITIES	6
Doctrinal Commitment	6
Teaching Position	6
Scripture Statement	6
Philosophy of Education	7
Core Themes	7
Curriculum Foci	8
Inclusive Language Policy	8
Campus Facilities	8
Library Services	8
Statement of Student Rights and Responsibilities	9
The Seattle School Ethical Code of Conduct	9
GRADUATE ADMISSIONS STANDARDS	10
Degree Application Process	10
Enrollment	11
Previous Degree Requirements for Admission	11
Provisional Admission	11
Life Experience	11
Entrance Exam Requirement*	11
Applicants from Non-Accredited Institutions	12
Reapplying to The Seattle School	12
International Applicants	12
Non-Degree Seeking Students	12
Community Audit Students	13
RECORDS MAINTENANCE	14
Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)	14
Student Records	14
ORIENTATION AND ACADEMIC POLICIES	15
Orientation	15
Registration	15
Academic Policies	15
Academic Accommodations	15
Academic & Financial Petition Process	15
Academic Honesty	16
Auditing	16
Changing Degree Programs or Adding a Second Degree	16
Course Attendance & Presence Policy	17
Course Changes	17
Course Recordings	17

Credit Hours & Course Load	17
Community Audit & Continuing Education	18
General Graduation Requirements	18
Grading	19
Grading for Practical Classes	19
Grading Scale for Courses Receiving Letter Grades	19
Grade Appeals	20
Incompletes	20
Independent Study	20
Individualized Research	21
Integrative Projects	21
Internships/Field Experience	21
Leave of Absence, Withdrawal and Readmission	22
Modality Changes (MACP students only)	22
Repeated Courses	22
Satisfactory Academic Progress (SAP) Academic Policy	23
Religious Accommodation	24
Residency Requirements for Low-Residency Students	24
Statute of Limitations for Completion of Degree	24
Transfer Credit Requirements	24
Transferability of Credits	25
STUDENT FINANCIAL SERVICES	26
Financial Aid	26
Federal Direct Student Loan Program and Eligibility Requirements	26
Eligibility Requirements	26
Direct Unsubsidized Loan	26
Financial Aid Application Deadlines	26
Application Process	27
Process	27
Disbursement	27
Borrowing Additional Funds	27
Financial Aid Repayment Policy	27
Institutional Scholarships	27
Family Aid Fee Waiver Assistance	27
NASFAA Code of Conduct for Institutional Financial Aid Professionals	27
Financial Aid Eligibility and Student Budget	28
Payment Plans	28
Cost of Attendance	28
Tuition & Fees for 2022-2023	29
Tuition Refund Policy	29
Financial Appeals	29
Student Academic Progress (SAP) Financial Policy	30
SAP Loss of Eligibility	30
SAP Appeals	30

COMMON CURRICULUM	31
Common Curriculum Description	31
Common Curriculum Outcomes	31
DEGREE PROGRAMS	32
Master of Arts in Theology & Culture	32
Degree Requirements	33
Degree Requirements	35
Degree Requirements	37
Master of Arts in Counseling Psychology	39
Program Learning Outcomes	39
Degree Requirements	39
MACP Curriculum - On-campus (66 credit hours)	40
MACP Curriculum - Low-residency (66 credit hours)	41
MACP + CTA - On-campus (72 credit hours)	42
MACP + BOR - On-campus (72 credit hours)	43
Psychotherapy Requirement	44
Licensure	45
COURSE DESCRIPTIONS	46
Course Suffixes	46
Division of Bible Textual Interpretation (BTI)	46
Division of Counseling Studies (CSL)	48
Division of Integration Studies (IDS)	54
Division of Relational Leadership Ministry Practice (RLM)	56
Division of Spiritual Formation/Direction Studies (SFD)	58
Division of Theology and Cultural Engagement (TCE)	60
FACULTY & INSTRUCTIONAL STAFF	65
BOARD OF TRUSTEES, ADMINISTRATORS & STAFF	67
2022-2023 ACADEMIC CALENDAR	68

The Seattle School of Theology & Psychology is authorized by the Washington Student Achievement Council and meets the requirements and minimum educational standards established for degree-granting institutions under the Degree-Granting Institutions Act. This authorization is subject to periodic review and authorizes The Seattle School of Theology & Psychology to offer specific degree programs. The Council may be contacted for a list of currently authorized programs. Authorization by the Council does not carry with it an endorsement by the Council of the institution or its programs. Any person desiring information about the requirements of the act or the applicability of those requirements to the institution may contact the Council at P.O. Box 43430, Olympia, WA 98504-3430.

The Seattle School of Theology & Psychology is accredited by the Commission on Accrediting of the Association of Theological Schools (ATS) in the United States and Canada, and the following degree programs are approved: Master of Divinity, Master of Arts in Counseling Psychology and Master of Arts in Theology & Culture. The commission's contact information is: The Commission on Accrediting of the Association of Theological Schools in the United States & Canada - 10 Summit Park Drive, Pittsburgh, PA 15275. Telephone: 412-788-6505; Fax: 412-788-6510; www.ats.edu.

The Seattle School of Theology & Psychology is accredited by the Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities. Accreditation of an institution of higher education by the Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities indicates that it meets or exceeds criteria for the assessment of institutional quality evaluated through a peer review process. An accredited college or university is one which has available the necessary resources to achieve its stated purposes through appropriate educational programs, is substantially doing so, and gives reasonable evidence that it will continue to do so in the foreseeable future. Institutional integrity is also addressed through accreditation. Accreditation by the Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities is not partial but applies to the institution as a whole. As such, it is not a guarantee of every course or program offered, or the competence of individual graduates. Rather, it provides reasonable assurance about the quality of opportunities available to students who attend the institution. Inquiries regarding an institution's accredited status by the Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities should be directed to the administrative staff of the institution. Individuals may also contact: Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities 8060 165th Avenue NE Suite 100 Redmond, WA 98052. Phone: 425-558-4224. www.nwccu.org.

The Seattle School of Theology & Psychology actively subscribes to a policy of equal education and employment opportunity for all people and does not discriminate on the basis of race, national origin, sex, age, marital status or disability. This policy is in compliance with Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. Students have specific rights that are guaranteed by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974. The Seattle School of Theology & Psychology has a policy prohibiting sexual harassment. Inquiries regarding compliance with federal, state and local laws or accreditation standards should be directed to the Office of Student Services and Alumni.

While every effort is made to ensure the accuracy of the information in this catalog, The Seattle School of Theology & Psychology (hereafter referred to as The Seattle School) has the right to make changes at any time without prior notice. The Registrar, in conjunction with other appropriate staff and faculty, is responsible for the annual updating and revision of the catalog. The Board of Trustees has final authority for approval of the catalog and approves changes annually. The catalog is for purposes of information and does not constitute the irrevocable terms of a contract between The Seattle School and current or prospective students. There are established procedures for making changes and procedures that protect the school's integrity and the individual student's interest and welfare. A curriculum or graduation requirement, when altered, is not made retroactive unless the alteration is to the student's advantage and can be accommodated within the span of years normally required for graduation. If a student drops out of The Seattle School or becomes inactive and later returns, that student falls under the jurisdiction of the policies and procedures of the catalog in effect at the time of return.

It is the school's expectation that students will follow school policies and procedures as presented in the catalog and student handbook. The student assumes personal responsibility for fulfilling their course of study and completing the graduation requirements of The Seattle School. A student's ignorance of a policy, which appears in published student documents, particularly the catalog or student handbook, is not a valid reason for granting an exception to any policy. The catalog and student handbook are available to view and/or print from The Seattle School website: theseattleschool.edu.

PRESIDENT'S GREETING

This is a snapshot of the educational experience at The Seattle School. We place ourselves at the intersection of *text.soul.culture* to prepare you for wise, engaged service in the world. Yes, you will be reading many books, from the foundation of Scripture through the latest research in psychology, theology, critical social theory and the arts. We will also challenge you to explore aspects of your soul and story that may have been obscured before. And we do all of this in the context of culture and the complexity (and, sometimes, messiness) of community. Because increasingly, our national discourse is marked by division and fragmentation, we talk *to* each other more than *with* each other. Here, you will be invited to another way—to wrestle together with the big questions about living as relational beings amidst broken systems, and with our individual and collective callings in light of the wicked problems of our time.

Your work here will be full of deconstructing familiar ideas, participating in robust discourse, and building new imagination. It's a difficult but life-giving process. And know this: we are not doing our jobs if your learning is contained to the classroom. Your education at The Seattle School is about training and equipping you to serve God and neighbor. I pray that the change and healing you find here propels you toward the change and healing of our world, and that the Spirit continues drawing you—and all of us—into emboldened service.

Welcome to our community of lifelong learners.

J. Derek McNeil, PhD President and Provost

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of The Seattle School is to train people to be competent in the study of text, soul and culture in order to serve God and neighbor through transforming relationships.

OUR COMMUNITY AND FACILITIES

Doctrinal Commitment

The Seattle School is an evangelical and progressive institution. The faculty consciously submits to the authority of Scripture and the model of a hermeneutical framework that interprets the Bible in light of its grammatical, historical, literary, and theological contexts. Relational hermeneutics is a full-bodied, soul-engaging, heart-transforming encounter that involves the subjective worldview of the interpreter as much as the process of interpretation.

Teaching Position

We believe in one God, the Father, the Almighty, maker of heaven and earth, of all that is, seen and unseen. We believe in one Lord, Jesus Christ, the only Son of God, eternally begotten of the Father, God from God, Light from Light, true God from true God, begotten, not made, of one Being with the Father; through him all things were made. For us and for our salvation he came down from heaven, by the power of the Holy Spirit he became incarnate from the Virgin Mary and was made man. For our sake he was crucified under Pontius Pilate;

he suffered death and was buried. On the third day he rose again in accordance with the Scriptures; he ascended into heaven and is seated at the right hand of the Father. He will come again in glory to judge the living and the dead, and his kingdom will have no end. We believe in the Holy Spirit, the Lord, the giver of life, who proceeds from the Father and the Son, With the Father and the Son is worshiped and glorified, He has spoken through the prophets. We believe in one holy catholic and apostolic Church. We acknowledge one baptism for the forgiveness of sins. We look for the resurrection of the dead, and the life of the world to come. Amen.

Matthew 22:37-40

Jesus replied: "Love the Lord your God with all your heart and with all your soul and with all your mind. This is the first and greatest commandment. And the second is like it; Love your neighbor as yourself. All the Law and the Prophets hang on these two commandments."

Scripture Statement

We confess that the scriptures, both Old and New Testaments, are the Word of God. We give thanks for them as a gift from God, inspired by the Holy Spirit, written down by God's servants. We receive them in the tradition of the Christian Church as entirely true and the supreme authority in all matters of faith and conduct and as the authoritative guide to our identity and vocation, bringing us to the fullness of life in Jesus Christ.

Philosophy of Education

The mission of The Seattle School is to train people to be competent in the study of text, soul and culture in order to serve God and neighbor through transforming relationships.

We strive to create a Christian educational community where students will think critically and creatively, engage authentically and relationally, and embody a synthesis of text, soul and culture that moves us outward into the larger community, the church, and the world. Through an integrated and intentional process of formation, students are invited to pursue life-long learning, personal and spiritual growth and effective service that reflects the presence and action of Christ in the world.

Foundational to our worldview is the understanding that God the Creator and Revealer is the source of all knowledge and insight. Through Scripture, the natural world, human history and interpersonal relationships, we come to apprehend and practice truth. Growth in knowing God and others is possible because humans have been made in God's image, with the capacity to learn and love.

We believe that all truth is God's truth, whatever its source, though with the Church of all ages, we confess that the scriptures, both Old and New Testaments, are the written word of God. We give thanks for them as God's gift, inspired by the Holy Spirit, transmitted by God's servants. We receive them as entirely true and the supreme authority in all matters of faith and conduct and as the authoritative guide to our identity and vocation, bringing us to the fullness of life in the living Word, Jesus Christ.

Education at The Seattle School encourages the holistic development of students, with their unique abilities and giftedness, to love and serve God and others with all their heart, soul and mind. The Seattle School students should be able to demonstrate their commitment to Christ, to think theologically and relationally about contemporary issues, respond practically and effectively to their sense of God's calling, live lives of holy love, and become transforming influences for God's kingdom in their diverse cultural settings.

At The Seattle School, students are valued as learners who are integral to our educational and spiritual community. We recognize and celebrate the diversity of our students' lives: their different gifts, abilities, experiences, cultures, and ways of learning. The Seattle School faculty not only teach, but through their education, expertise, and life-experience, they also serve as mentors, encouragers, and colleagues in life-long learning.

Core Themes

The Seattle School's mission of becoming competent in the study of text, soul and culture to serve God and neighbor through transforming relationships is expressed through its core themes of formation, integration and sustainability.

Formation

We seek to form people through a holistic process that encompasses transformational learning methods, cross-disciplinary inquiry, personal and spiritual development, and experiential learning. Graduates are not only trained to be counselors, pastors, theologians, social and cultural entrepreneurs, but also to read *text* (scripture, literature, personal narratives), *soul* (self as psychological, social and spiritual), and *culture* (identity and contexts) in order to equip themselves to serve others in diverse and complex contexts.

Integration

We practice the exercise of integrating theology and psychology as a means to emphasize scholarship with a goal towards effective service and practice in a complex world. We utilize a pedagogy of collaborative learning activities with *multiple disciplines, discourse, mentoring, and capstone experiences* to support students in developing a frame for their practice. Students are immersed in various approaches towards learning (experiential, transformational, dialogical, relational, critical reflection, etc.) to support the development of their critical and creative capacity to engage real-world challenges.

Sustainability

Sustainability embodies the prudent and enduring *stewardship* of human, spiritual, social, intellectual and financial resources. We emphasize personal and relational development in preparation for service to the common good and the social and spiritual revitalization of the Christian Church. Within the institution it includes *ongoing* and

innovative resource development endeavors to sustain a supportive learning, living and working environment for students, alumni, faculty and staff and a commitment to be a *sustaining* and *revitalizing* force in local and global communities. A spirituality that advocates self-awareness, interconnectedness and the construction of meaning is sustaining.

Curriculum Foci

The Seattle School has designed its curriculum for life-long learners. The Master of Arts in Theology & Culture degrees are designed to broaden and enrich the Christian calling to serve God and neighbor via a variety of careers in the arts, community development, and ministry. The Master of Arts in Counseling Psychology degree is a professional counseling curriculum designed to prepare a student for licensure or certification. Although the educational requirements of many states can be met through the M.A. in Counseling Psychology program, it is the responsibility of each student to determine their state's requirements and plan an educational experience to meet the requirements.

Inclusive Language Policy

At The Seattle School, we value the diversity of our community, confessing that God loves everyone equally. Inclusive language is important because it represents this diversity accurately and it facilitates a culture where difference is respected and valued.

The Seattle School expects members of its community to use inclusive language and to avoid the use of discriminatory language. This includes avoiding demeaning terms or expressions reinforcing demeaning attitudes about persons or groups based on age, race, ethnicity, national origin, gender identity, sexual orientation, marital status, disability, religion, and avoiding using masculine terms to refer to persons who might be either male or female. Faculty, staff and students should strive to use anecdotes or examples, and bibliographic references that are representative of the whole population.

All syllabi, papers or other written communications are covered by the terms of this policy. In exceptional circumstances, for example, in artistic expression, certain terms or language may be acceptable if the overall content is deemed respectful. For most circumstances, the current editions of the APA Publication Manual, Chicago Manual of Style, and writer's guides (e.g. A.A. Lunsford, The Everyday Writer) offer assistance to apply these guidelines.

Campus Facilities

Please see the Student Handbook for a full explanation of our physical and online campus facilities.

Library Services

The library serves a vital educational role at The Seattle School, offering resources for student and faculty research and supporting the curricular and administrative information needs of the school. The library's collection includes more than 20,000 print books and audiovisuals, and more than 200,000 electronic books and streaming videos. The <u>library catalog</u> can be found on the library's website. Remote access to the library's online resources is available for current students, faculty and staff.

The library subscribes to the premier online databases in the fields of psychology, religion and general studies; including APA PsycINFO, Atla Religion Database, and Academic Search Ultimate. Subscriptions to full-text journal packages such as APA PsycARTICLES and ATLA Serials Plus provide students with more than 15,000 titles in full text. In addition to the onsite collection and online resources, students can request materials from libraries across North America through interlibrary loan. Every attempt is made to obtain requested material, either by buying it for the library collection or borrowing it from another library.

The library maintains a physical Class Reserves collection, intended for in-library use only, with at least one copy of every required book for the current term. Although not guaranteed, when available and affordable, digital copies of required course books are purchased and links to them are posted to the appropriate class page. In addition, most recommended materials listed on course syllabi will be available in the library, either as physical or digital versions.

Computer workstations and other audiovisual equipment are available for student use. A wireless network, available throughout the building, allows students to use their own laptops and print to networked printers. Printing and photocopying charges are \$.08/page.

Library staff is available to provide instruction in the use of the library's resources, in informal encounters, scheduled on campus or Zoom appointments, and classroom visits.

Statement of Student Rights and Responsibilities

The Seattle School seeks to be a community which follows God, in the way of Jesus Christ, by the power of the Holy Spirit. In light of this commitment, and to honor the personhood and dignity of others, all students enrolled at The Seattle School assume an obligation to conduct themselves at all times as responsible members of the campus community (both on-campus and online), to respect the personal and property rights of others, and to support the educational mission of The Seattle School. The Seattle School insists that its students demonstrate personal and professional integrity in addition to academic excellence.

The Seattle School's administrators, faculty and staff encourage student involvement in decision making. Student participation and input on institutional committees are valued and encouraged at The Seattle School.

The Seattle School Ethical Code of Conduct

While on campus at The Seattle School, or at The Seattle School sponsored events, or interacting with The Seattle School faculty, staff, or fellow students, students are held accountable and expected to conduct themselves in an ethical, professional and civil manner. Unprofessional behavior includes, but is not limited to, hostile or careless uses of profanity or obscenities, physical displays of anger or aggressiveness, threatening gestures or comments, violence or unlawful harassment, insubordination, persistent, or disrespectful arguing, or any other illegal or unethical conduct. Unprofessional behavior or violations of academic integrity may be cause for disciplinary action.

Please see the <u>Student Handbook</u> for the full policy, including information about the Student Conduct Committee and how to deal with Student Concerns.

GRADUATE ADMISSIONS STANDARDS

The Admissions process at The Seattle School is intentionally designed to:

- Provide a robust experience of The Seattle School's mission, ethos, curriculum and community.
- Invite the applicant to engage their own story and vocational direction.
- Discern the applicant's personal, vocational and theological resonance with the mission and ethos of The Seattle School.
- Assess whether the applicant is vocationally, academically and relationally positioned to succeed as a graduate student at The Seattle School.

Candidates are selected based on their vocational alignment, life experience, emotional and relational intelligence, aptitude for rigorous academic work, and resonance with the mission, culture and theology of The Seattle School. Decisions are made in community by the Admissions Review Committee.

The Seattle School seeks to create a place for discourse in the intersections of theology, psychology and culture. That means we are committed to diversity in every sphere of faith and life. We receive applications without discrimination on the basis of race, ethnicity, religion, gender, age, national origin, disability, marital status, sexual identity, sexual orientation, military status or denomination.

As an interdenominational Christian school engaged in theological education, our courses utilize Christian theological frameworks in all of our degree programs. Students are invited to engage this work from their own contexts and commitments within the guidelines and learning outcomes of the courses and assignments.

Degree Application Process

The Seattle School offers rolling admission and accepts applications to our graduate programs throughout the year, as seats are available. Application deadlines correspond with group interview events, which are required to complete your application. Application deadlines and group interview dates are posted online at theseattleschool.edu/admissions.

Admissions reviews are dependent upon complete applications. Application materials required for admission to The Seattle School's graduate programs include the following:

- 1. Online Application for Graduate Admission.
- 2. \$50 non-refundable application fee.
- 3. Photograph
- 4. Curriculum vitae including a summary of the applicant's academic and vocational background, formative life experience, training, qualifications, honors, affiliations, and other noteworthy information.
- Two essays demonstrating vocational calling, awareness of personal narrative, capacity for interdisciplinary engagement, understanding and resonance with the mission and ethos of The Seattle School, and preparedness for graduate study.
 - Application essays are used for assessment and placement. Applicants may be required to attend the Writing Workshop and/or accepted under provisional admission if application essays are deemed unsatisfactory.
- 6. Two recommendations from individuals who are able to speak to the applicant's readiness for graduate level study, specifically the applicant's maturity and integrity, emotional and social awareness, capacity for self-reflection, theological engagement, and intellectual curiosity.
- 7. Official undergraduate and graduate transcripts (if applicable) from all postsecondary schools, institutes, universities and seminaries
- 8. Official Miller Analogies Test or Graduate Record Examination score.*

 *The test score requirement is waived if the applicant has previously completed graduate-level coursework with an average grade of a B or higher and/or if their undergraduate GPA is 3.0 or higher.
- 9. Participation in a group interview.* We place a high value on gaining a holistic experience of our applicants and are intentional about creating an opportunity for each applicant to be seen and known. Our interviews are conducted in small groups and focus on dialogue and group dynamics.

- *A second interview or follow up conversation may be required at the discretion of the Admissions Review Committee.
- 10. Current TOEFL scores may be required for applicants whose primary language is not English and whose post-secondary coursework was conducted in a language other than English.
- 11. Applicants are not required to submit proof of vaccinations.

Enrollment

Accepted applicants must secure their seat by submitting a formal notice of intent and an advanced tuition deposit of \$250. Admitted students may not register for classes until the deposit is received. The deposit will be credited to the student's account for the first term of enrollment, and is non-refundable after June 15th of the enrollment year.

Previous Degree Requirements for Admission

The Seattle School does not require specific undergraduate degree(s) (e.g. Psychology, Theology, Biblical Studies) or prerequisite coursework or to be eligible for admission. However, applicants must have earned a four year baccalaureate degree or its full equivalent from a college or university accredited by a U.S. accreditation association holding membership in the Council for Higher Education Accreditation (CHEA), the Association of Universities and Colleges in Canada, or from an institution which maintains similar academic requirements and standards. General admission requirements include a cumulative grade point average of 3.0 or higher (on a 4.0 scale).

Although these prerequisite courses are *not required* for admission, undergraduate studies in the liberal arts and sciences are helpful. The Seattle School *recommends* that applicants complete 40 term hours in the following areas:

- 6 credits: English (Composition and Literature)
- 2 credits: Philosophy
- 8 credits: Psychology (Growth and Development, Abnormal Psychology, Theories of Personality)
- 4 credits: History (Western Civilization)
- 2 credits: Speech
- 4 credits: Natural Science
- 4 credits: Social Science
- 4 credits: Foreign Language
- 7 credits: Additional Liberal Arts and Sciences

Provisional Admission

An applicant may be accepted on a provisional basis if the applicant's cumulative grade point average is below the 3.0 general admission requirement. The applicant will be required to take a graduate entrance exam (GRE or MAT) and must exhibit the ability for greater academic achievement. Applicants granted provisional acceptance will be admitted on Academic Probation which requires a minimum of a 3.0 GPA after the completion of the first trimester of study at The Seattle School, and may contain other recommendations such as participation in the Writing Workshop.

Life Experience

We highly value the whole of the life experience of each of our applicants. Each year, we are able to admit a limited number of students to our graduate programs who have not completed a traditional undergraduate degree, but whose life experience merits the ability to apply. Admission based on life experience is intended for those who have been prevented from accessing higher education due to extenuating circumstances or systemic barriers.

Entrance Exam Requirement*

*Entrance exams are only required for applicants with a GPA below 3.0

The Seattle School understands that a test score cannot evaluate an individual's character, emotional awareness, or depth of spirit, but considers entrance exams as a tool for assessing readiness for graduate level study.

Miller Analogies Test

The (MAT) measures the test taker's verbal comprehension, analytical thinking, and the ability to connect ideas through a series of analogies. The median score for the MAT is 400, with a standard deviation of 25. The Seattle School is looking for MAT scores falling between 375 and 425. Scores must be less than 2 years old. You must

request that The Psychological Corporation send your original test scores to The Seattle School. The Seattle School's reporting code for the MAT is 2499. For a testing center in your area, visit MAT online or call 1-800-622-3231.

Graduate Record Examination

The (GRE) measures verbal reasoning, quantitative reasoning, critical thinking, and analytical writing skills. The GRE verbal and quantitative sections are each scored on a range from 130 to 170, for the highest total of 340. The essays are scored on a scale of 0-6. The Seattle School is looking for verbal and quantitative scores ranging from 150-160 and essays scoring 4 or higher. Scores must be less than 2 years old. Applicants must request that The Educational Testing Service send original test scores to The Seattle School. The Seattle School's reporting code for the GRE is 4895. Testing centers local to the applicant can be found by visiting GRE online or calling 1-800-GRE-CALL.

Applicants from Non-Accredited Institutions

Applicants with a degree from a non-accredited institution may be granted provisional acceptance with full admission based on satisfactory work in residence. A copy of the institution's catalog, providing context about the program of instruction, faculty credentials and learning resources must be submitted at the time of the application. Prerequisite coursework or additional information may be required at the discretion of the Admissions Review Committee to establish equivalency of the degree.

Reapplying to The Seattle School

Seattle School students who are in a withdrawn status or have been on a leave of absence for more than three terms; accepted applicants whose yearlong deferment has expired; or applicants who withdrew a completed application less than 2 years ago are eligible to *reapply* for admission.

Admissions reviews are dependent upon complete applications. Application materials required for readmission to The Seattle School degree programs include the following:

- 1. Online Application for Graduate Admission.
- 2. \$50 non-refundable application fee.
- 3. Photograph.
- 4. Restatement of Purpose Essay.
- 5. Official transcripts from any postsecondary coursework completed post-enrollment at The Seattle School (if applicable).
- 6. An individual interview with a member of the Admissions Review Committee.

International Applicants

Applicants who are not U.S. citizens or permanent residents are encouraged to apply at least six months prior to enrollment. International student applicants are responsible for pursuing and securing the appropriate student visa status through the U.S. government.

In addition to the degree program admissions requirements, applicants applying as international students must submit the following admissions materials:

- 1. Evidence of Financial support form and all required financial documents.
- 2. Qualify for and complete F1 Student Visa requirements.

If an applicant's primary language is not English and/or their post-secondary coursework was conducted in a language other than English the following admissions materials must be submitted:

- 1. Official Test of English as a Foreign Language (TOEFL) test results.
- 2. English language transcripts from all post-secondary education institutions. *Applicants are responsible for any costs involved in translation services.*

Non-Degree Seeking Students

Individuals interested in participating in a graduate course at The Seattle School may apply for non-degree seeking status. Non-degree students have the same rights and responsibilities as degree-seeking students and may take up to 12 graduate hours either for credit or audit, but are not eligible to receive Title IV student financial assistance.

An official record and transcript of these courses will be provided upon official request and may be transferred into a graduate program at The Seattle School at a later date. For more information about transferring these credits to another institution, please see the Transfer Credit Policy in this Catalog. Some courses are not available for non-degree enrollment. The Registrar/Associate Dean of Academic Administration reserves the right to limit non-degree enrollment in any course.

Application materials required for admission as a non-degree student include the following:

- 1. Non-Degree Application.
- 2. Undergraduate and graduate transcripts (unofficial or photocopied transcripts are acceptable for non-degree applicants only).
- 3. An individual interview with a member of the Admissions Review Committee.

Community Audit Students

Auditing a course provides an opportunity to experience The Seattle School culture and learning community without applying as a degree-seeking student. Community audit students are granted access to information technologies at The Seattle School and are permitted to attend lectures and complete assignments, but are not granted the same rights and access as degree-seeking students (e.g. work will not be submitted or graded). An official record and transcript is provided but coursework is not credit bearing. The transcript provided outlines seat hours, which serves as proof of seat hours for continuing education units. Some courses are not available for community audit enrollment. The Registrar/Associate Dean of Academic Administration reserves the right to limit community audit enrollment in any course. Auditing students do not have the privilege of inviting guests.

Admission materials required for application as a community audit student include the following:

- 1. Community Audit Application.
- 2. An individual interview with a member of the Admissions Review Committee.
- 3. Full payment for audit tuition. Tuition charges are outlined below.

 *Checks must be made payable to The Seattle School. If full payment for community audit tuition is not received prior to the first class session, attendance will be denied. Enrollment in classes for audit follows the same refund schedule held by degree-seeking students.

Tuition for Community Audit courses is \$325 per credit.

Community Audit students may withdraw from a registered course during the first week and receive a 100% refund of their tuition or during the 2nd week and receive a 75% tuition refund. For intensive courses, Community Audit students may withdraw up until the end of the first course meeting and receive a 100% refund or a 75% refund before the end of the second class meeting. Tuition will not be refunded for any courses withdrawn after these dates.

RECORDS MAINTENANCE

Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)

The Seattle School complies with the Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974 concerning privacy and disclosure of a student's permanent educational record. Under FERPA, students are protected against improper disclosure of their records. This law affords students certain rights with respect to their educational records as follows:

- To inspect and review the student's educational records within 45 days of the day the graduate school receives a request for access.
- To request the amendment of a student's educational records that the student believes are inaccurate or misleading.
- The right to a hearing if the request to correct an alleged inaccuracy is denied.
- The right to consent to certain disclosures of information. The Seattle School policy is to confirm only dates of attendance, areas of study, and degrees/certificates earned unless the student signs a release form authorizing disclosure of additional information.
- To file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning alleged failures by The Seattle School to comply with the requirements of FERPA.
- FERPA applies to students upon matriculation at The Seattle School; matriculation occurs on the first day of the first term that a student is enrolled for graduate credit classes.
- Students may request a hard-copy version of the FERPA statement from the Academics Office.

The Seattle School designates the following items as Directory Information: student name, spouse name, address(es), telephone number(s), email address, photograph, enrollment status, date of birth, graduate degree study (degree/certificate program), participation in officially recognized activities, dates of attendance, degrees and awards received, most recent and previous educational institution attended by the student. It is institutional practice to use only the following information for the Student Directory: student name, address, telephone, email address and picture.

Annual notice is provided to students regarding the personally identifiable information that the institution utilizes for the Student Directory. If a student wishes to prohibit this information from being disclosed in the Student Directory, a nondisclosure form must be submitted to the Academic Office within 14 days after the start of the term.

Students may withhold free disclosure of Directory Information (on an all or nothing basis) to non-institutional persons or organizations. A student maintains the option to protect their privacy and not have such information as addresses and telephone numbers released. Forms requesting the withholding of this information are available in the Academic Office. Otherwise, the institution assumes the approval of disclosure of directory information. Students must complete the form by the end of the second week of their entering term if they do not want directory information to be included in the Student Directory. Aside from the specific deadline that relates to the Student Directory in the fall, requests for non-disclosure may be filed anytime, but cannot be effective until received by the Academic Office. Requests will be honored until revoked by the student.

Student Records

The Academic & Student Financial Services Offices retain a variety of records pertinent to the academic progress and financial records of students. These records are available to faculty and staff as authorized and who have legitimate educational interest in the student. A school official has a legitimate educational interest if the official needs to review an education record in order to fulfill their professional responsibility and/or to conduct educational or institutional effectiveness research. This may include support staff positions, members of the Board of Trustees or a student serving on an official committee or assisting another school official in performing their professional responsibilities for The Seattle School. Education records are released to other individuals or agencies only with the student's written authorization.

The Seattle School students and alumni are entitled to receive transcripts of their completed course work. Upon receipt of a signed Transcript Request Form and receipt of the transcript request fee, the Registrar's Office will issue

an official transcript to appropriate institutions or individuals. Transcripts will not be issued for students who have financial obligations and/or for those who have not completed their debt counseling obligation if they received federal student loan assistance while at The Seattle School. Transcripts from other institutions submitted to The Seattle School for admission or transfer credit evaluation will not be photocopied or forwarded elsewhere.

ORIENTATION AND ACADEMIC POLICIES

Orientation

Orientation (for new students), (Re)Orientation (annually for all students), and Frameworks & Intersections at The Seattle School are both required and essential for incoming students. During these times of programming, students will have opportunities to address practical issues, such as getting student IDs, updating contact information, using the library, and support with course registration and academic advising. They will have time to connect with fellow students, staff, faculty, and their Listening Lab Leaders to begin orienting to what it means to be a student at The Seattle School. Spouses are welcomed and encouraged to attend all orientation programming.

Registration

First year students are strongly encouraged to make advising appointments with the Academic Office during the registration period. Upper level students are welcome to make advising appointments with the Academic Office.

A student who has not met their financial obligations to The Seattle School for previous classes by the registration date for the following term will be unable to register for courses. They will be able to register for courses once their financial obligations are met. If outstanding financial obligations are not met by the third week of the subsequent term, the student will be assigned to an inactive status.

Courses with enrollments of less than six students during open registration may be canceled and, if so, students will be informed. A student who needs a required canceled course for graduation may arrange for an Independent Study with assistance and approval from the Dean of Teaching & Learning and Registrar/Associate Dean of Academic Administration.

When selecting required courses please be sure to choose the correct section for your modality. Low-residency students should select courses ending with an "O" (online) or "R" (residency). On-campus students should select courses ending with an "S" (Seattle). You may also see courses ending with "D" (dual). These classes are taught partly on-campus and partly online over the course of the term. Courses ending with a "T" are travel residencies. Elective courses that are only offered in one format are open to all students regardless of modality provided that the student is able to attend the class in the modality it is offered in (i.e., accomodation will not be made for non-local students to take an on-campus section of an elective course remotely).

Academic Policies

Students are responsible for knowing and understanding academic policies and procedures of The Seattle School. Not knowing these policies as presented in The Seattle School publications is not a valid reason for granting any exceptions to established policies.

Academic Accommodations

Please see the Student Handbook for full details on how to request academic accommodations.

Academic & Financial Petition Process

The Seattle School desires to be responsive to the needs of the student in all areas of their life. The school has established policies and procedures in both academic and financial areas, as well as personal, moral, ethical, and spiritual development as indicated in this catalog. These policies and procedures are intended to cover most circumstances that arise, but it is recognized that there are situations that warrant special individual consideration.

A student who feels that their situation warrants an exception to academic or financial policies or regulations is encouraged to file a petition with the Academic or Student Financial Services Office, respectively. Academic and Financial Petition Forms can be obtained from the Academic or Student Financial Services Office or on the school's website at theseattleschool.edu.

An Academic Petition Form is submitted to the Academic Office. The Registrar may request more information either in person or in writing. The Registrar will then submit the appeal to the Academic Policies Committee with recommendations for action. It is the responsibility of this committee to consider the following student issues:

- Request for an extension beyond dates established by institution.
- Reasons for dropped courses which resulted in automatic failure.
- Suspension as a result of disciplinary action.
- Financial appeals.
- Exemptions from other institution policies as noted in the catalog.

The student has the right to appeal the decision of the Academic Policies Committee in writing to the Dean of Teaching & Learning. A letter of appeal must be submitted to the Dean of Teaching & Learning within 30 days of the decision of the Academic Policies Committee, failing which, no appeal shall be considered. The Dean will consider the information that has been provided by the Academic Policies Committee and by the student, and any other information that may be relevant to the appeal in deciding whether to uphold the decision of the Academic Policies Committee, to impose a different penalty, or not to impose a penalty at all. Decisions of the Dean of Teaching & Learning are final.

Academic Honesty

For full details on the Academic Honesty policy, please see the Student Handbook.

Auditing

An active student with degree seeking status may enroll in courses for audit. An audit student is considered a participant in the class and must meet normal attendance requirements to receive transcript notation. Completion of assignments or examinations is at the professor's discretion. An audited course does not contribute toward degree requirements and any student who wishes thereafter to receive degree credit for the class must repeat the course with all work graded contemporaneously. A student may not audit Listening Lab, practicums or internships, and the Registrar/Associate Dean of Academic Administration reserves the right to restrict registration for audit in other courses.

Changing Degree Programs or Adding a Second Degree

A student may change from one Master's Degree program to another Master's Degree program or apply to a second Master's Degree by completing the Change/Adding of Degree Program Form and obtaining the written recommendation of the following:

- A faculty member specific to the student's desired program.
- The Registrar/Associate Dean of Academic Administration
- For specific Concentration admissions please see the Registrar's office.

The student must be in good academic standing in their current degree program(s) with a cumulative GPA of at least 2.7. No students will be allowed to change degree programs or add another degree program before they have successfully completed the following first year courses:

- IDS 501 Intersections: Interdisciplinary Inquiry & Psychological Frameworks
- IDS 502 Intersections: Biblical Traditions & Theological Formations
- IDS 520 First Year Listening Lab Part I
- IDS 521 First Year Listening Lab Part II

When adding a second degree program, only half of the credits from the shorter degree (the one with less total credits required for graduation) may be used to fulfill credits for the second degree program, regardless of which program the student was originally enrolled in. In order to complete the MATC and MACP degrees, the student would need 86 credits. If you are interested in completing more than one degree program at The Seattle School, please see the academic office for the list of required classes and electives for combining degree programs.

Course Attendance & Presence Policy

The attendance policy at The Seattle School of Theology & Psychology is student centered and rooted in transformational learning. We believe learning happens in community. To be part of The Seattle School as a student or as a member of the instructional team means one is a vital contributor to our learning collective. Your membership in our co-created learning community invites active engagement, preparedness, collaboration, discussion, and faithful presence. Whether on-campus or online, active engagement necessitates personal and focused presence in scheduled synchronous classes and labs. Individual courses may also include participation and/or engagement in grading rubrics as it relates to course learning outcomes. Please see individual course syllabi for the specifics pertinent to each class.

*Please note that lab courses (i.e. IDS 520/521, IDS 503/504/505, CSL 530/531, CSL 553, RLM 530/531 etc.) have particular attendance policies.

Course Changes

A course change (adding and/or dropping a course) by a student after the completion of the second week of the term is assessed a \$25 fee per change. Courses dropped after the second week of the term will receive a grade of withdrawal (W), and require a completed drop request form available in the Academics Office. Courses dropped after the sixth week will receive a grade of withdrawal while failing (WF), and require a completed drop request form available in the Academics Office. Specific change dates for each academic term are outlined in the academic calendar.

It is the student's responsibility to drop a class(es) before the end of the add/drop period. Students will be financially and academically responsible for all courses they are registered for on Populi.

Course change deadlines for intensive courses differ and are listed below. All intensive course drops require a completed drop request form available in the Academics Office.

Two Day Intensives

A student may drop the course before the course begins with no academic record. A course dropped during the first class session receives a withdrawal (W) grade. A course dropped after the end of the first class session receives a withdrawal failing grade (WF).

Three or more Day Intensives

A student may drop the course before the course begins with no academic record. A course dropped during the first or second class session receives a grade of W. A course dropped after the end of the second class session receives a grade of WF.

Course Recordings

Starting in Fall 2022, recordings of online and on-campus lecture courses will be made available **only** to students who need them as part of an academic accommodation. Recordings of classes, regardless of modality, will not be made available to the general student population. This policy aligns with the Course Attendance & Presence policy which encourages "live" attendance at all courses with the exception of emergencies. Students may not record any class lectures or sessions without written permission from the course instructor(s).

Credit Hours & Course Load

Rooted in our belief that learning happens in community, all courses across modalities include synchronous elements that bring instructors and learners together for live engagement. Each course, regardless of modality, provides a minimum 30%, up to 100%, of course instructional time through synchronous instructional time.

Courses at The Seattle School consist of both instructional time led by faculty and outside course work that learners do independently. Per accreditation requirements, we define instructional time as 15 hours per credit and outside coursework time as 30 hours per credit.

Instructional Time constitutes proactive interaction between instructors and learners, wherein information delivery, guided engagement, and dialogue are structured toward the achievement of course learning outcomes.

Outside Coursework Time constitutes the work learners do on their own to be prepared for instructional time and to complete assignments.

Guidelines for Instruction and Coursework Estimates

To support instructors' course design and to help frame student expectations, this list of course time-per-credit outlines the general guidelines for course workloads. Page counts stand in for estimated time spent as it correlates to project work/viewing time, etc. Writing is inclusive of papers, formal Discussion Board posts, presentations, final exams, etc. Reading is inclusive of assigned coursework media: course texts, films, podcasts, etc.

One credit hour

15 hours of instructional time; Minimum of 5 hours synchronous "live" instruction

30 hours of outside coursework time

Writing: 10-15 pages written Reading: 500 – 700 pages

Two credit hours

30 hours of instructional time; Minimum of 10 hours synchronous "live" instruction

60 hours of outside coursework time

Writing: 15 -20 pages written Reading: 750 – 1050 pages

Three credit hours

45 hours of instructional time; Minimum of 15 hours synchronous "live" instruction

90 hours of outside coursework time

Writing: 20-25 pages written Reading: 1050 – 1400 pages

Courses are not able to be changed in credit load (i.e. a student may not request to take a 3 credit course for 2 credits etc.). Additionally, courses offered for credit are not able to be changed into Individualized Research courses in order to amend the credit load. Please also see the Individualized Research and Independent Study policies in this Academic Catalog for more information.

Community Audit & Continuing Education

Some credit courses and noncredit learning events (e.g. seminars, workshops, etc.) may be taken for personal enrichment (Community Audit) apart from graduate credit. Currently enrolled, degree-seeking or non-degree seeking students are not eligible for Community Audit courses. Some courses are space-limited and/or experiential, and are not available for Community Audit enrollment. The Registrar/Associate Dean of Academic Administration reserves the right to limit enrollment in any course.

The Seattle School also offers Continuing Education Units (CEU). A student requesting CEU units must request the units at least one week before the class starts by using the CEU Request Form and paying \$30 per seat hour they want to have reported. A letter is provided to the student upon completion of the course or learning event. The student is also responsible for any other associated course fees and/or tuition charges.

General Graduation Requirements

In order to graduate from The Seattle School, a student must:

- Complete the prescribed course of study within the time limitation and achieve a cumulative grade point average of 2.7.
- Meet Residency attendance requirements (for Low-Residency students only)
- Remove any admission provisions.
- Be enrolled as a current student.
- Settle all financial obligations including payment of the graduation fee. A student who has not paid
 their account in full will not have access to any student services including transcript, diploma, or
 enrollment for a second degree.

- File an Intent to Graduate form with the Academic Office at least three months prior to their anticipated graduation date.
- Receive the recommendation of the faculty and approval by the Board of Trustees for graduation.
- MACP students must complete 40 hours of individual Psychotherapy as noted in the Psychotherapy Requirement Policy document available on the website.
- Please note that participating in the commencement ceremony does not constitute conferral of a
 degree. The Registrar/Associate Dean of Academic Administration will complete degree audits after
 each academic term for those students who have filed an Intent to Graduate form. Students who have
 met all of the graduation requirements will be awarded degree posted transcripts and an official
 diploma.

Completed degrees are recorded each term. All degrees are conferred on the last day of the trimester in which the student completes their degree requirements. A degree is granted when the Registrar/Associate Dean of Academic Administration confirms the completion of all academic requirements, and the student receives the recommendation of the faculty and approval by the Board of Trustees for graduation.

Grading

Student grades will be posted on Populi within one week of receipt of grades from faculty. Grades will not be released over the phone or email.

Grading for Practical Classes

Practical Classes are defined as Listening Lab, Practicum, Field Experience, Counseling Internship, and Apprenticeship.

All practical courses are assigned a grade of CR (credit given) or NC (no credit given). If a student receives an NC grade in Listening Lab Part I or II, or Pre-Internship Counseling Practicum, they will need to repeat that course until they receive credit to advance to the next course.

First Year Listening Lab Part I & II is one course that must be taken over two consecutive trimesters. At the conclusion of Part I, the Listening Lab Leader, in conjunction with the Faculty Director, will review the progress of all the Listening Lab students. Students who are in good standing in the course will receive a grade of IP (in progress) on their fall transcripts and be allowed to maintain registration in First Year Listening Lab Part II for winter trimester. Those students who are not in good standing will receive a grade of NC (no credit) and will be required to repeat Part I and Part II the following year. At the successful conclusion of both Part I and Part II, the student will also receive a CR grade for Part II and one term credit each for fall and winter trimesters will be awarded on the student's transcript.

Since Listening Lab Part I & II is a two trimester courses and must be taken consecutively, if a student completes Part I with good standing in the course but is unable to finish Part II due to any reason, academic related or not, they will receive an NC (no credit) for both Part I and Part II and will be required to repeat both parts the following year.

It should be noted that even though registration and payment for Part I and Part II are done separately in order to accommodate financial aid and billing requirements, it is considered one course to be completed over two trimesters and so grading and credit assignment are handled accordingly.

Grading Scale for Courses Receiving Letter Grades

The grading scale for all course assignments receiving letter grades is as follows:

- A Represents an unusually competent paper that clearly makes its argument, contains extraordinary style, cleverness of argumentation, and/or thoroughness of research.
- B Represents a competent and thorough response to the assignment.
- C Represents a paper that is less than competent by a clear failure to communicate or to support arguments.

The grading scale for all courses receiving letter grades is as follows:

Α	95-100	4.0	Excellent – superior achievement of course objectives
A-	90-94	3.7	
B+	87-89	3.3	
В	83-86	3.0	Good – competent and commendable achievement of course objectives
B-	80-82	2.7	
C+	77-79	2.3	
С	73-76	2.0	Poor – less than competent achievement of course objectives
C-	70-72	1.7	
F	69 or below		Failing – unacceptable achievement of course objectives

This grading scale is posted in all course syllabi and is used in the submission of final grades for a course (reflected on a student's transcript). All courses, unless noted otherwise, are required to give letter grades.

Grade Appeals

Concerns regarding grades (including pass/fail courses) are to be resolved between the student, assistant instructor (if applicable) and faculty member. Students must contact the faculty member to dispute their grade within 4 weeks of grades being posted. If resolution is not obtained through conversation, a student has until the end of the term following the one in which the grade was received to complete a formal grade appeal. To appeal a course grade formally:

https://theseattleschool.edu/students/academic-calendar/

- 1. The student submits the complaint directly to the faculty member, in writing, within 6 weeks of receiving the grade.
- 2. The faculty member has 30 days to respond to the appeal.
- 3. If a resolution is not achieved, the student may bring the concern to the Dean of Teaching & Learning by submitting an appeal in writing, through the Registrar's office.
- 4. The Dean of Teaching & Learning has 30 days to respond to the appeal. The decision of the Dean is final.

Incompletes

Each course syllabus indicates all due dates for required course work. Due dates are final and changes are only at the discretion of the instructor. In the case of serious illness, family emergency or other extenuating circumstances, the instructor may grant an extension of any portion of but not more than six weeks from the end of the term to complete course assignments. Extension requests must be submitted to the instructor in writing via the Incomplete Contract form on the website.

A temporary grade of I (incomplete) is entered in the student's academic record until a final grade is determined. When the student completes the coursework and submits it to the instructor, the instructor completes a Grade Change Form indicating the new grade. The Academic Office processes the new grade and the student will be able to view the grade change via Populi. Students who are requesting Incomplete grades should also be aware of the Satisfactory Academic Progress (SAP) implications outlined in this catalog.

Independent Study

The Dean of Teaching & Learning, in consultation with the proposed course instructor, may grant permission for a student to enroll in a regular course through independent study. Independent study should not be undertaken solely for personal convenience, but only because of extenuating conflicts that prevent the student from taking the course when it is normally offered. Requests for independent study must be submitted to the Academic Office no later than 30 days prior to the first day of the term the student is applying for. Requests submitted after this date will be considered for the subsequent academic term.

For a 1 credit course, the student completes the assignments as required in the syllabus plus an additional 1 credit of work. 1 credit of work is equivalent to a 10 page paper and reading 2 books totaling 500 pages.

For a 2 credit course, the student completes the assignments as required in the syllabus plus an additional 1 credit of work. 1 credit of work is equivalent to a 10 page paper and reading 2 books totaling 500 pages.

For a 3 credit course, the student completes the assignments as required in the syllabus plus an additional 1 credit of work. 1 credit of work is equivalent to a 10 page paper and reading 2 books totaling 500 pages.

When approved as a course of study by the Dean of Teaching & Learning, each student may not exceed the following number of Independent Study AND/OR Individualized Research credits in their chosen program of study:

- MATC 2
- MACP − 4
- MDiv 6

This is also to be inclusive of transfer courses (independent study courses PLUS transfer courses cannot exceed the limit of 15 credits. Please see the Credit Transfer policy outlined in this catalog for more information.) Independent Study courses also cannot include all courses in a required series, (i.e. Therapy I & II, Psychopathology I & II etc..)

Individualized Research

The Dean of Teaching & Learning, in consultation with a proposed course instructor, may approve an individualized course of research. This elective permits students to design and pursue personalized courses. The course numbers for individualized research courses are generally listed on the transcript with a 580 numeration. No more than 2 individualized research credits will be granted for each degree program. To be eligible for approval, the study must not replicate a course normally offered in the regular program. The student must be maintaining an overall grade point average of at least 3.0 in the degree program.

Individualized research credit may be granted to a student with the following requirements:

- Student submits a proposal to an appropriate faculty member and the faculty member agrees to grant individualized research credit.
- A sample syllabus is developed by the faculty member and student and submitted to the Registrar.
- Final approval is granted through the Dean of Teaching & Learning.
- Requests for individualized research must be submitted to the Academic Office no later than 30 days
 prior to the first day of the term the student is applying for. Requests submitted after this date will be
 considered for the subsequent academic term.

Integrative Projects

The Integrative Project for MDiv and MATC students is a required, 2 or 3 credit course that bridges 2-3 terms for completion. Students will only register for this course once, but will have until the end of the currently enrolled academic year in order to fully complete the course requirements as laid out in the syllabus. After the first term of enrollment, if the student is in good standing and making good progress towards completion, the instructor will assign the grade of IP (In Progress). Once the requirements are complete the IP grade will be changed to the letter grade earned.

If the student cannot complete the project by the end of the current academic year they will earn the incomplete grade of "I" and the student will enroll in a 1 credit BTI 572 Integrative Project Continuation course in the subsequent Fall term. If the student cannot complete the project by the end of the subsequent Fall term they will earn a failing grade of "F" and the student may re-enroll in the 2 credit BTI 570 course a second time per the Repeated Course policy outlined in this Academic Catalog.

Students who are not enrolled in any other academic coursework but are working on their Integrative Projects to meet their final degree requirement will be enrolled in the course BTI 572 Integrative Project Continuation for 0 credits. The course will not show up on any transcripts or be graded, but will carry a fee of \$150 per term of enrollment in this course. This fee will cover administrative, instruction, and library expenses associated with keeping the student in active status.

Internships/Field Experience

Some of the degree programs at The Seattle School have an internship and/or a practical course requirement. The student will be expected to follow the internship or practical course guidelines that are fully described in the internship handbook. This includes meeting all the prerequisites and course requirements. Please refer to the individual degree program internship handbooks for more information.

Leave of Absence, Withdrawal and Readmission

A student who does not intend to enroll in courses at The Seattle School in a given term may apply for a Leave of Absence (LOA) by completing a Withdrawal/LOA Request Form or notifying the Registrar in writing. Upon approval by the Registrar, the student is then considered to be on LOA. The maximum length of time allowed for a LOA is three consecutive terms. A student may request an extension to their LOA, in writing, to the Registrar.

A student may withdraw from all courses in a given term and retain their degree status, without academic penalty, up to six weeks into the term. Withdrawal from courses requires completing a Withdrawal/LOA Request Form or notifying the Registrar in writing. Upon approval by the Registrar the student is then considered to be on LOA. The student is still responsible for tuition as outlined in the Tuition Refund Policy. Please also see the Withdrawal and Return of Title IV Funds policy for financial aid implications of withdrawal.

A student will be automatically considered withdrawn if they have not registered for courses for the previous three terms and they have not been approved for an extension to their LOA by the Registrar.

For a withdrawn student to be reinstated in a degree program at The Seattle School, they must apply through the Admissions department for reinstatement. If the student has been inactive for more than three academic terms, they must complete their degree under current admission and academic requirements.

When a student is suspended for any reason (financial, conduct or academic) they will receive written notification stating the terms of the suspension from the Associate Dean of Academic Administration. If the suspension decision was not related to failure to make satisfactory academic progress, the student may appeal the suspension decision per the academic appeals policy in this catalog.

A student wishing to be readmitted after they have been suspended for Code of Conduct or Academic Integrity violations from The Seattle School must apply to the Admissions Department for approval by the Dean of Teaching & Learning. Application cannot be made within three terms of the suspension. The application should indicate how the student intends to finish their academic career successfully and should identify any activities completed during the student's absence from The Seattle School that will enable future success in the program. The student will be advised, in writing, of the decision of the Dean of Teaching & Learning. If the petition is denied, the letter will include suggestions for reconsideration.

Modality Changes (MACP students only)

The MACP degree is offered in two modalities: on-campus and low-residency. Students who experience significant changes in life-circumstances (e.g., cross-country moves, acute illness, etc.) may request a change in modality ONCE during their time in the program using this MACP Modality Change Request form.

The low-residency program is space-limited and seats are not guaranteed. Requests will be assessed on a first-come, first-served basis as space permits. To make a request students must be in good academic standing in their current degree program, with a cumulative GPA of at least 2.7. No students will be allowed to request a modality change until they have successfully completed the following first year courses:

- IDS 501 Intersections: Interdisciplinary Inquiry & Psychological Frameworks
- IDS 502 Intersections: Biblical Traditions & Theological Formations
- IDS 520 Listening Lab Part I
- IDS 521 Listening Lab Part II

Please note that any change in modality is comprehensive and persistent: the change impacts ALL of the student's required courses for the remainder of their time in the program. If a student requests a change of modality while a term is currently in progress, and their request is approved, the change will take effect for the following term. In other words, changes in modality will not change a student's course enrollment for the current term.

If a student has already changed modalities once and feel that they need to switch again, they MUST submit an Academic Petition in order to do so.

Repeated Courses

Students must earn a grade of 2.7 (B-) or higher in each required course for their degree program (please see the individual degree program requirements located in this catalog). This requirement does not include courses that are counted as electives in the student's degree program. Required courses that are awarded grades below 2.7 must be repeated successfully (earning a 2.7 or higher) and will not count as having met any prerequisites for future courses until the successful grade has been earned.

The student will register and pay tuition for the course a second time. Both courses will appear on the transcript in the term in which they were taken (this applies to both elective and required course repeats). However, credit will not be granted more than once and the highest grade achieved will be retained for GPA calculation. Only one repeat is permitted per course.

A student may choose to repeat an elective course, subject to regular restrictions and limitations, in an effort to achieve a higher grade when a grade of C+ or lower was earned.

Satisfactory Academic Progress (SAP) Academic Policy

Satisfactory academic progress is measured by both the quality and quantity of academic work at the end of each trimester. The Satisfactory Academic Progress (SAP) Academic policy requires a student to maintain a 2.7 grade point average (GPA), for both term and cumulative. In addition, the following policies apply:

- Students must successfully complete 70% of their attempted course load. Grades of Incomplete (I),
 Withdraw (W) or Withdraw Failing (WF) will be included in the course load and are not considered
 successfully completed courses. Students who are enrolled in approved transfer courses at another
 school concurrently with courses at The Seattle School will have all courses counted towards their
 attempted course load.
- A student not successfully completing 70% of their attempted coursework or receiving a term or cumulative GPA below a 2.7 during one term will receive an academic warning within two weeks of the final submission final grades from the Academic Office stating that the student has failed Satisfactory Academic Progress.
- If a student does not maintain a 2.7 cumulative or term GPA or successfully complete 70% of their attempted coursework for a second consecutive term, the student is placed on academic probation. A student placed on academic probation will be notified in writing by the Academic Office within two weeks of the final submission of grades. Each student placed on probation will be required to meet with the Registrar to develop a plan to improve their GPA above the minimum required (e.g., retaking courses with low or failing grades, taking fewer courses each term, attending the writing workshop). If the student makes satisfactory academic progress during the subsequent term they will be removed from academic probation.
- A student who does not meet SAP may lose their Financial Aid eligibility. For Financial Aid implications please see the Financial Aid SAP policy located in this catalog.
- A student remaining on academic probation for two consecutive terms may be suspended. A decision
 to suspend a student will be communicated to the student within two weeks of the final submission of
 grades. If a student is suspended for failure to make satisfactory academic progress, they will not be
 allowed to enroll in classes for a minimum of three terms.
- The student may appeal a suspension decision by submitting a written letter of appeal to the Dean of Teaching & Learning within 30 days of receiving notice that they have been suspended from The Seattle School. The student must demonstrate to the Dean that exceptional circumstances were involved and provide evidence indicating that they can raise the grade point average within one term. If the Dean of Teaching & Learning fails to approve the petition, the student is required to withdraw from classes for a minimum of three terms. The Dean may also request that the student fulfill other requirements while suspended.
- A student wishing to be readmitted after they have been suspended for failure to meet Satisfactory Academic Progress must apply to the Admissions Department for approval by the Dean of Teaching & Learning. Application cannot be made within three terms of the suspension. The application should indicate how the student intends to finish their academic career successfully and should identify any activities completed during the student's absence from The Seattle School that will enable future success in the program. The student will be advised, in writing, of the decision of the Dean of Teaching & Learning. If the application is denied, the letter will include suggestions for reconsideration.

Religious Accommodation

The Seattle School will make good faith efforts to provide reasonable religious accommodations to students who have sincerely held religious practices or beliefs that conflict with a scheduled course or program requirement. Students requesting religious accommodation should submit a written request to their instructor with at least three (3) weeks notice. Any absence resulting from a religious accommodation does not excuse students from course requirements or information reviewed during missed classes. Students are responsible for obtaining materials and information provided during any missed class. The student shall work with the instructor to determine a schedule for making up missed work.

Residency Requirements for Low-Residency Students

The Seattle School offers four degree programs in a Low-Residency model, which involves periodic in-person intensive instruction, along with independent or remote coursework in between those residential intensives. In other words, students attend weekly courses online, then, two to three times per year they come to campus for retreat-like weekends. These retreats consist of formation, disciplinary and interdisciplinary teaching, and community building with other low-residency students.

Low-Residency MACP students are required to attend a total of six (6) residencies. All MATC students are required to attend a total of four (4) residencies.

If a student needs to miss a residency for an extenuating circumstances (death in the family, acute illness etc.), they may file an academic petition using the <u>Academic Petition Form</u> to request two (2) things:

- To reduce the number of residencies required for graduation AND
- To still be allowed to enroll in the course even though they will miss the associated residency.

Statute of Limitations for Completion of Degree

Course work for a degree offered by The Seattle School must be completed within the established time limit as measured from the date of entry to the degree program. A student is expected to complete the program requirements within the time limits given below. Students who attend The Seattle School on a part-time basis should be monitoring their progress towards degree completion. If a student requires additional time to meet the degree completion requirements, they must appeal to the Academic Policies Committee a minimum of two trimesters before the end of the statute of limitations in order to be awarded additional time. Additional coursework may be required for students who exceed the time limit.

Master of Arts in Theology & Culture 3 years
Master of Arts in Counseling Psychology 5 years

- Students who enroll in an additional degree program while enrolled in another degree program will be allowed the time limits for both degree programs.
- Students who complete one degree and then begin work on a subsequent degree will be judged to have begun a new degree.
- Students who change degrees prior to completing the previous degree will be judged to have begun their degree with their initial coursework.
- Approved leave of absences and withdrawals per the Withdrawal/Leave of Absence policy in this
 catalog do not count in the calculation of the overall statute of limitations for degree completion.
 Students must complete the Withdrawal/Leave of Absence Request form located on the school website
 in order to have their absences approved. Students who do not complete this step are considered to be
 on unapproved absence and the time away will be counted towards their statute of limitations.

Transfer Credit Requirements

A student who has completed relevant graduate level studies prior to enrollment at The Seattle School may request consideration from the Academic Services Office for the transfer of credit within two terms after admission into a degree program. The Seattle School will consider appropriate transfer credit from fully-accredited, graduate level institutions.

For credit to be granted the previous work must parallel course content (80 percent or higher equivalence), as judged by comparison of typical course syllabi. The official transcript must indicate a grade of B (3.0) or higher. Language courses can be transferred with a grade of B- (2.7) or higher. Course work must have been completed within five years of the application for transfer credit. An application is not complete unless an official transcript unopened by the student is provided to the Academic Office. The Registrar makes a final decision with input from appropriate faculty as needed.

A student enrolled in any of the degree programs may transfer in a maximum of 15 semester credit hours counting towards the required credits for graduation. The total number of transfer credits approved is entered on The Seattle School transcript but are not considered in the grade point average computation.

Please note that core first year courses at The Seattle School are especially unique to The Seattle School and transfer credits from other institutions replacing these courses are not accepted.

Any active student who desires to take courses applicable to their degree program at another institution must have the approval of the Academic Services Office prior to enrolling for such courses. The same transfer credit requirements apply to active students.

Note for Low-Residency students seeking transfer credit - residency related courses (i.e., those ending in "R") that otherwise meet the transfer credit requirements named above may only be transferred in if they are completed prior to the student's enrollment in The Seattle School. If a low-residency student wishes to take a residency related course elsewhere during their degree program (i.e. after enrollment), they must both request for the transfer credit approval as noted above, and also petition to be exempt from the associated residency prior to enrolling in the course elsewhere. Please see the Residency Requirements for Low-Residency students policy in this Catalog for further details.

Students who successfully complete Unit 1 CPE training at a hospital in a program accredited by the Association for Clinical Pastoral Education (ACPE) will be eligible to receive general elective credit. Students will be awarded:

- 4 elective credits if the student completes the CPE training *in addition* to their internship/field experience.
- 2 elective credits if the student completes CPE training *in conjunction with* their internship/field experience.

These credits will be awarded upon:

- The review and approval of the student's final synthesis paper by the Professor of Practical Theology.
- Letter of successful completion from the supervising chaplain.

Transferability of Credits

Students wishing to transfer The Seattle School credits to other schools prior to or after completion of a degree program at The Seattle School are responsible to ascertain the acceptance of credit by the receiving institution. Sometimes there is not an adequate fit in the curriculum or standards between two schools and credits will not transfer. Students should always contact the Registrar's office at the school in question to determine whether credits from The Seattle School will transfer to that institution. By working closely with advisors at The Seattle School and other institutions, the student can maximize the likelihood of receiving credit for The Seattle School courses at other institutions.

STUDENT FINANCIAL SERVICES

Financial Aid

The Department of Education has certified that The Seattle School of Theology & Psychology is eligible for Title IV student financial aid assistance under the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended (HEA). The Seattle School is part of the Federal Direct Loan Program. Students may apply for Federal Direct loans to cover their educational expenses. Types of aid include: Direct Loans, Scholarships, Work-Study and Veteran Affairs Funding.

For student loan assistance, the contribution toward college costs expected from the student is calculated according to a federal mandated needs analysis system, which takes into account many factors representing the student's financial and family situation. Students must be enrolled half-time (a minimum of four credits per trimester in Fall and Winter terms and a minimum of three credits in Spring trimester) in a program leading to a degree to receive financial aid. Please note that all Direct Loans are loan money, not student grants and must be repaid.

Some work-study positions are available for students who have eligibility for this program. Each fall a notice will be placed in the student newsletter requesting applications from interested students. For additional information about work-study opportunities and eligibility questions, please contact Student Financial Services.

Federal Direct Student Loan Program and Eligibility Requirements

The Seattle School participates in the Federal Direct Student Loan Program. Direct Loans are low-interest loans for students to help pay for the cost of a student's education. The lender is the U.S. Department of Education rather than a bank or other financial institution. As of July 1, 2012, graduate/professional students are only eligible for Direct Unsubsidized Loans and Graduate Plus Loans. These loans are not based on financial need and interest is charged during all periods. Students can borrow up to \$20,500 in Direct Unsubsidized Loans per year and may also apply for Graduate Plus Loans, the total of which may not exceed the yearly Cost of Attendance.

Eligibility Requirements

To be eligible to apply for and receive a student loan, a student must:

- Be a citizen of the United States or an eligible non-citizen.
- Be admitted to a regular degree program. Students classified as non-degree are not eligible for federal student loans.
- Satisfy Selective Service requirements; all men ages 18-25 must register at www.sss.gov.
- Not have defaulted student loans.
- File the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA); available at www.fafsa.gov.
- Enroll halftime with a minimum of four credits (Fall/Winter; 3 in Spring): cannot include audit credits.
- Maintain satisfactory academic progress.

Students who do not maintain eligibility may be required to return all financial aid and may be required to start the repayment process on any federal student loan they have received.

Direct Unsubsidized Loan

Eligibility: Not need-based; must still file FAFSA.

Amount: Cannot exceed \$20,500 per academic year.

Interest Rate: To view current interest rate go to: www.studentaid.ed.gov/interest.

Repayment: Begins six months after graduation or student ceases to be enrolled at least half-time for

six consecutive months. Borrowers are responsible for interest as long as there is a balance

owing on their Direct Unsubsidized or Graduate Plus loans.

Financial Aid Application Deadlines

July 15th is the priority deadline for filing the federal financial aid application. This deadline is in place to secure funding availability within the first week of classes. If you do not successfully complete a financial aid application on or before July 15th you may still be eligible but funding may not be available the first week of classes.

Application Process

Students are eligible to apply for Title IV Funds through the Direct Loan program. To apply, applicants must:

- Complete the admissions process and be fully admitted to The Seattle School.
- Complete the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) located online at www.fafsa.ed.gov. The federal code for The Seattle School is G34664.
- Submit additional documentation to verify eligibility as requested by the office of Student Financial Services

Process

Accepted students should file their FAFSA to begin the financial aid process. Student Financial Services will create financial aid offer letters which will inform the student of their aid eligibility. Student offer letters will be available to review and accept online on the student portal, Populi. Once an offer letter has been accepted the loan will be originated with The Department of Education and new students will have additional instructions to complete the aid process. Please refer to the financial aid checklist for more information.

Disbursement

Once the student has completed the financial aid application and award process, their loans will be scheduled for disbursement. These funds will be applied to the student's account to cover the cost of attendance and any unused funds will be issued to the student within 3 business days of the start of term classes in the form of a stipend check.

Borrowing Additional Funds

Students are encouraged to speak directly with Student Financial Services if needing to inquire about applying for Direct Graduate Plus Loans.

Financial Aid Repayment Policy

Students receiving financial aid assistance through the Title IV Federal Direct Loan Program may be required to repay the loan should they withdraw or drop below half-time standing before 60% of the term has passed. Calculation of the amount to be repaid is based on the number of weeks the student was enrolled at least half-time (four credits in Fall & Winter terms and three credits in Spring term).

Institutional Scholarships

The Seattle School has developed some institutional scholarship programs with the intent to invest funds in students who possess unique qualities important to be recognized. Students are invited to consider and apply for any of the appropriate scholarship programs offered by The Seattle School. Applications, deadlines and award dates will be posted on The Seattle School website during the Spring term of each academic year. All scholarship recipients must maintain Satisfactory Academic Progress as outlined in this catalog.

Family Aid Fee Waiver Assistance

Funds are available to assist first-year or continuing students who are married (to another student) or single parents enrolled in degree programs who demonstrate financial need. Both members of the married couple must be enrolled full-time with at least seven credits in Fall & Winter terms and six credits in Spring term, not including credits taken for audit. The amounts of the awards vary according to need and number of applications received each year. Applications, deadlines and award dates will be posted on The Seattle School website during the Spring term of each academic year. All Family Fee Waiver Assistance recipients must maintain Satisfactory Academic Progress as outlined in this catalog.

NASFAA Code of Conduct for Institutional Financial Aid Professionals

The staff of The Seattle School Office of Student Financial Services is committed to the highest standards of professional conduct. We follow the National Association of Student Financial Aid Administrators code of conduct. We invite you to contact us if you have any questions.

An institutional financial aid professional is expected to always maintain exemplary standards of professional conduct in all aspects of carrying out their responsibilities, specifically including all dealings with any entities involved in any manner in student financial aid, regardless of whether such entities are involved in a government sponsored, subsidized, or regulated activity. In doing so, a financial aid professional should:

Refrain from taking any action for his or her personal benefit.

- Refrain from taking any action he or she believes is contrary to law, regulation, or the best interests of the students he or she serves.
- Ensure that the information he or she provides is accurate, unbiased, and does not reflect any
 preference arising from actual or potential personal gain.
- Be objective in making decisions and advising his or her institution regarding relationships with any entity involved in any aspect of student financial aid.
- Refrain from soliciting or accepting anything other than nominal value from any entity (other than an
 institution of higher education or a governmental entity such as the U.S. Department of Education)
 involved in the making, holding, consolidating or processing of any student loans, including anything of
 value (including reimbursement of expenses) for serving on an advisory body or as part of a training
 activity of or sponsored by any such entity.
- Disclose to his or her institution, in such manner as his or her institution may prescribe, any
 involvement with or interest in any entity involved in any aspect of student financial aid.

Financial Aid Eligibility and Student Budget

Financial aid is intended to cover more than your tuition expenses. Your tuition costs are just a part of the overall cost of education. We recognize that students may have expenses which may not be included in the standard student budget.

Students with special circumstances may wish to discuss their particular financial needs with the Student Financial Services Coordinator. Other non-tuition costs (books, room and board, transportation, and other living expenses) are estimated in the indirect costs table below.

The Student Financial Services Coordinator is available to meet with you to discuss your individual financial aid package and per term charges.

Payment Plans

Tuition and fees are due in full the first day of class. Tuition is paid per term, and determined by the number of credits you are taking. You may pay tuition charges with financial aid, personal resources, and/or employer benefits. If you choose not to use financial aid or have remaining charges after financial aid is applied to your account, you may arrange a payment plan directly with the Student Financial Services office.

Recognizing that many students are not able to pay full tuition and fees at the beginning of each term, students may utilize a monthly payment plan for a fee of \$50 (per term). This means students can make three equal payments throughout the term, each due the first Friday of each month. If payment is not received by the 15th of each month, a finance charge will be assessed on the entire balance due at the rate of one percent per month. If the student does not utilize the monthly payment plan and their full payment is not received within the first week of the term, students will be subject to late fees. Late fees will accrue monthly. These fees can be avoided by making arrangements prior to the start of the term to cover your student account balances.

Any student with a balance remaining at the end of a term may not secure grade reports or attend classes in any subsequent term. Students will be placed on a business/student account hold which will also prevent registration for future terms.

Failure to Pay

Students who fail to pay their full student account balance within a reasonable timeframe will be assessed administrative fees associated with the costs of collection for the account. Account balances that are sent to collections will also be reflected on a student's credit report and could adversely affect their credit profile. The Seattle School will make all best efforts to work with students around payment plans and notices around payments due before accounts are sent to collections.

Cost of Attendance

Financial aid is determined by need and cost of attendance. Your financial need is the difference between the cost of your education and your financial ability to pay for it. Your financial need is determined by an analysis of the information provided on your Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA). From this data, a federal

calculation determines what you should be able to pay from your own resources. This amount is subtracted from your total cost of education. The difference is your financial need, and the amount we will try to help you meet with financial aid.

The cost of attendance includes tuition, books and supplies, room and board, utilities, transportation, personal expenses, mandatory fees and required psychotherapy (for MACP students) while enrolled at The Seattle School. A standard student budget is comprised of these components, as specified by the school, and financial aid cannot exceed the student budget amount. Your financial lifestyle choices and personal expenses (such as credit card bills and car payments) cannot be included in the student budget. Many students save money by buying used books, sharing housing, and using public transportation.

Tuition & Fees for 2022-2023

Application Fee (non-refundable)	
Degree or Non-degree	\$50
Late Application Fee	\$25
Advance Tuition Deposit	\$250
<u>Tuition per credit</u>	
Graduate Credit	\$698
Audit	\$330
Community Audit	\$325
Alumni tuition rate	\$500
*please see Academic Office for full policy	
Fees per term	
Practical Training Lab Fee	\$210
Student Services & Lifecycle Gathering Fee	\$120
Registration & Information Technologies Fees	\$210
Naissallamanus Face	
Miscellaneous Fees	440=
Graduation	\$185
Alumni Association	\$150
Writing Workshop	\$300
Writing Seminar	\$250
Integrative Project Continuation (see policy)	\$150
Licensure Test Preparation (MACP students)	\$30
Late Registration	\$30
Course Change	\$25
Official Transcript (plus NSC surcharges)	\$5
Payment Plan Fee (per term)	\$50

Tuition Refund Policy

All courses (including intensives, practicum, and Listening Lab) are subject to the same drop policy. Students may make changes to their registration until the end of business day (5:00 pm) on the second Friday after weekly classes begin without penalty. Students may make changes to their registration after the second Friday but will be subject to only a 50% refund of tuition until the third Friday at 5:00 pm.

All changes made after this time will be charged the full tuition rate. Students who have experienced hardship forcing them to change their registration may apply for a financial appeal if they wish to receive a tuition refund.

Financial Appeals

Exceptions to financial aid policies may be appealed. Please see Appeals policy under the Academic Policies and Procedures section.

Student Academic Progress (SAP) Financial Policy

To remain eligible for financial assistance, including Direct Loans, Scholarship, Veteran Affairs Funding and Work Study, students must have satisfactorily completed previous work and maintain satisfactory academic progress (SAP). Please see the Academic Satisfactory Progress policy in the Academic Catalog for more information.

Students must be enrolled at least half-time at The Seattle School to be eligible for loans or loan deferments. Students who change degrees will be eligible for Direct Loans for all courses required to complete the new degree. Please see the Statute of Limitations Policy in the Academic Catalog for more information on completing additional degrees or changing degree programs.

Students who are not currently seeking federal financial aid may still be monitored to determine their eligibility for future possible financial aid awards.

If a student received Direct Loans and fails SAP for a specific term but successfully completes at least half of what they registered for in that term they will be placed on Financial Aid Warning. Warning is not a status that will affect the next term disbursement. After completion of the subsequent term the SAP will be evaluated again. If the student passes, the warning status will be recorded and removed. If the student fails to meet SAP that subsequent term, they will be subject to Loss of Eligibility (Suspension) as described below.

SAP Loss of Eligibility

The following events will result in immediate Financial Aid Suspension and loss of eligibility:

- Failure to meet SAP for two consecutive terms
- Failure to meet SAP for three non-consecutive terms

Make Satisfactory Academic Progress: Meet All 3 Standards to be Eligible for Financial Aid

Grade Point Average	Maintain a term AND cumulative 2.7 GPA
Course Completion	Successfully complete 70% of attempted credits each term
Degree Progress	Master of Arts in Theology and Culture: 3 years Master of Arts in Counseling Psychology: 5 years Master of Divinity: 6 years

SAP Appeals

We understand that circumstances sometimes prevent students from making satisfactory academic progress towards their degree. If you are ineligible for financial aid because you are not meeting SAP requirements, and extenuating circumstances have hindered your academic performance, you may submit a SAP Appeal to have your eligibility reconsidered. Please be aware that submission of an appeal is not a guarantee of approval. We strongly encourage you to submit your SAP Appeal immediately after you receive notification that you are not meeting SAP requirements so that you may receive a decision on your appeal in a timely manner.

- If your SAP Appeal is approved, you will be responsible for following specific conditions each term in order to maintain your financial aid eligibility. We will notify you via email of the conditions you are required to meet to maintain eligibility, and we will review your progress before we disburse any additional aid to you each term.
- If your SAP Appeal is denied, you will be responsible for all costs associated with your enrollment during the academic year.

A student who has lost eligibility for Financial Aid must meet SAP requirements. A student does not automatically regain eligibility simply by paying for their own classes or passing their classes or by sitting out a term.

Notices regarding loss of eligibility will be sent to all students who fail to meet SAP standards within two weeks of the final submission of grades.

COMMON CURRICULUM

At The Seattle School, all students, regardless of degree program, take a common set of courses referred to as the common curriculum. In addition to the degree program's specific descriptions and objectives on the following pages, the common curriculum coursework is designed to provide an innovative, embodied, and formational education experience.

Common Curriculum Description

The common curriculum at The Seattle School is the interdisciplinary intersection where text, soul and culture are brought together for all degree programs. The curriculum engages students in critical and integrative thinking across cultural and ideological spectrums in the realms of biblical studies, theology, psychology and personal & spiritual formation. Rooted in community and relationships, it seeks to weave the Triune God's redemptive story with their personal narrative in pursuit of vocational and missional calling.

Common Curriculum Outcomes

Students will be able to:

- Develop and articulate an integrated theological anthropology, synthesizing biblical, cultural, psychological, and theological studies.
- Examine and articulate diverse methodologies of interpretation and various models of knowing with reference to their limits and validity.
- Critically reflect and respond to being embedded in one's own context, cultures, and systems and our complicity in contemporary problems generated by social fragmentation.
- Explore and articulate awareness of how one's particular narratives impact others and the call to love God and all creation.

DEGREE PROGRAMS

Master of Arts in Theology & Culture

The Master of Arts in Theology & Culture (MATC) program consists of three separate 39-credit degrees with a shared set of core theology classes. The program's curriculum is designed to prepare students to engage traditional and alternative ministry settings with robust theological thinking skills, contextual understandings of the Scriptures and the world, and a hopeful imagination for serving God and neighbor through transforming relationships. The degree covers a broad range of theological disciplines, prepares students professionally for leadership in religious and non-profit organizations, and attends to the intellectual, human, spiritual, and vocational dimensions of student learning and formation. The degree is academically rigorous, interculturally competent, and globally aware and engaged, preparing students for lifelong learning. The degree emphasizes contextual learning and allows flexibility for the exploration of a diversity of student interests. It includes an apprenticeship experience and a capstone Integrative Project that prepares students to engage in collaborative leadership upon graduation.

The three MATC degrees are:

- Master of Arts in Theology & Culture: Arts
- Master of Arts in Theology & Culture: Community Development
- Master of Arts in Theology & Culture: Ministry

Master of Arts in Theology & Culture: The Arts

An artist may be a maker, a dancer, a musician, a visual artist, and/or a person with creative energy, voice, and spirit who wants to articulate the problems of a community through artistic expression and imagination. This program will integrate the practices of art and the biblical pursuit of social justice so that artists may use their gifts to build communities of vision and hope. The goal of this program is to allow artists to weave together faith and artistic practice so that they may be people who are attuned to the workings of God's Spirit in the world. Artists in this program will learn to be attentive to issues around societal justice, revealing and giving voice to that which is too often ignored or unseen. Students will find new language and artistic forms in the midst of sorrow and the experience of trauma, providing tools to nurture resilience and sustain hope.

Shared Program Learning Outcomes

All Master of Arts in Theology & Culture share three common Program Learning Outcomes.

Upon successful completion of the Master of Arts in Theology & Culture program, graduates will be able to:

- Articulate insight into one's formative stories in the context of identities, cultures, places, and people, in order to embody a way of being and vocation as an expression of their understanding of God, self, and neighbor.
- 2. Develop, cultivate, and apply approaches to scripture and theology that attend to a diversity of possible perspectives and that lead to courage, imagination, and action.
- 3. Listen deeply, appreciatively, and with cultural responsiveness to the ecological and human communities they seek to serve, to discern the ongoing movement of God in those settings.

In addition to the shared MATC Program Learning Outcomes (listed above), graduates of the MATC: The Arts program will be able to

- 4. Understand and critically engage art as revelatory of God's presence in the midst of human suffering in order to enable personal and communal responses that cultivate joy, goodness, peace, hope, love, and justice.
- 5. Cultivate improvisation by embodying an adaptive capacity for several modes of integration of faith and artistic or creative practice in response to various contexts.

Degree Requirements

The M.A. in Theology & Culture degrees are conferred upon the attainment of certain academic and personal requirements. In addition to the graduate school requirements, degree candidates must:

- Give evidence of a level of personal maturity and stability that is consistent with ministry vocations.
- Complete all courses in the prescribed M.A. in Theology & Culture curriculum with a minimum grade point average of 2.7.
- Attend the four (4) required residencies.

M.A. in Theology & Culture: The Arts Low-Residency Curriculum (39 credit hours)

Course Number	Course Name	Credit Hours
Spiritual Formation Studies		
SFD 517R	Service & Sustainability: Action, Reflection, and Resilience (RESIDENCY)	3
Bible & Textual Interpretation		6
BTI 515R	Engaging the Bible: Genre, History, and Context (RESIDENCY)	3
BTI 5250	Interpreting the Bible: Exegesis, Hermeneutics, and Community	3
Interdisciplinary St	udies	9
IDS 5010	Intersections: Interdisciplinary Inquiry & Psychological Frameworks	2
IDS 5020	Intersections: Biblical Traditions & Theological Formations	2
IDS 5030	Intersections: Textual Integrations	1
IDS 5040	Critical Reading Lab	1
IDS 5050	Contextual Learning Lab	1
IDS 520R/521R	Listening Lab Part I & II (RESIDENCY)	2
Theology & Cultural Engagement		
TCE 5330	Theories of Change: Community Leadership	3
TCE 5340	Practices of Change: Apprenticeship in the Arts	3
TCE 5370	Christology in Historical Context	3
TCE 5380	Mission & Faithful Presence	3
TCE 546O	Constructive Theology: Issues, Critiques, and Doctrine	3
Capstone/Vocational Development		6
TCE 551R	Studio & Seminar: The Arts (RESIDENCY)	3
TCE 552R	Special Topics in Social Engagement & the Arts (RESIDENCY)	3
	TOTAL CREDITS FOR MATC DEGREE	39

Master of Arts in Theology & Culture: Community Development

This program prepares students to engage in the practices of community development and helps them to define theological and ethical foundations for the promotion of well-being in the communities they are called to love. Through practices of deep listening, participants gain the skills and nurture character qualities necessary to work in partnership with community members to foster organic, contextualized community change. Students gain a working knowledge of community development from diverse global perspectives, and apply their new understanding to their own local contexts—assuring that their vocational development is both culturally credible and contextually relevant. While some students in this program focus their vocational development on goals of collaborative development work in international settings, and others focus on community engagement in North American contexts, each student will gain the skills to be a credible agent of healing and change in the places they serve.

Shared Program Learning Outcomes

All Master of Arts in Theology & Culture share three common Program Learning Outcomes.

Upon successful completion of the Master of Arts in Theology & Culture program, graduates will be able to:

- Articulate insight into one's formative stories in the context of identities, cultures, places, and people, in order to embody a way of being and vocation as an expression of their understanding of God, self, and neighbor.
- 2. Develop, cultivate, and apply approaches to scripture and theology that attend to a diversity of possible perspectives and that lead to courage, imagination, and action.
- 3. Listen deeply, appreciatively, and with cultural responsiveness to the ecological and human communities they seek to serve, to discern the ongoing movement of God in those settings.

In addition to the shared MATC Program Learning Outcomes (listed above), graduates of the MATC: Community Development program will be able to

- 4. Articulate the theological and ethical foundations of their particular approaches to community development.
- Discern the strengths, needs, aspirations, and inherent resources of a community as a foundation for contextualized approaches to development.
- Guide processes of collaborative innovation, social enterprise, and social change at systemic and grassroots levels in order to foster communities that exemplify beauty, justice, and shared sense of belonging.

Degree Requirements

The M.A. in Theology & Culture degrees are conferred upon the attainment of certain academic and personal requirements. In addition to the graduate school requirements, degree candidates must:

- Give evidence of a level of personal maturity and stability that is consistent with ministry vocations.
- Complete all courses in the prescribed M.A. in Theology & Culture curriculum with a minimum grade point average of 2.7.
- Attend the four (4) required residencies.

M.A. in Theology & Culture: Community Development Low-Residency Curriculum (39 credit hours)

Course Number	Course Name	Credit Hours
Spiritual Formation Studies		3
SFD 517R	Service & Sustainability: Action, Reflection, and Resilience (RESIDENCY)	
Bible & Textual Inte	erpretation	6
BTI 515R	Engaging the Bible: Genre, History, and Context (RESIDENCY)	3
BTI 5250	Interpreting the Bible: Exegesis, Hermeneutics, and Community	3
Interdisciplinary St	udies	9
IDS 5010	Intersections: Interdisciplinary Inquiry & Psychological Frameworks	2
IDS 5020	Intersections: Biblical Traditions & Theological Formations	2
IDS 5030	Intersections: Textual Integrations	1
IDS 5040	Critical Reading Lab	1
IDS 5050	Contextual Learning Lab	1
IDS 520R/521R	Listening Lab Part I & II (RESIDENCY)	2
Theology & Cultural Engagement		9
TCE 5330	Theories of Change: Community Leadership	3
TCE 5350	Practices of Change: Apprenticeship in Community Development	3
TCE 5370	Christology in Historical Context	3
TCE 538O	Mission & Faithful Presence	3
TCE 546O	Constructive Theology: Issues, Critiques, and Doctrine	3
Capstone/Vocational Development		6
TCE 553R	Collaborative Community Development (RESIDENCY)	3
TCE 554T	Contextual Conversations for Community Transformation: Travel Course	3
	TOTAL CREDITS FOR MATC DEGREE	39

Master of Arts in Theology & Culture: Ministry

With a broad understanding of the church as the people of God, this degree prepares students for new expressions of missional, formational, and worshiping communities. The Master of Arts in Theology & Culture: Ministry program is designed to guide students into responsive, contextual, and courageous approaches to ministry at a time when faith practices are being redefined and expressions of church are being reimagined for the future. This program focuses on gathering within local contexts to discover God's liberative hope for their place and all its inhabitants. Students study, explore, and practice convening expressions of church in everyday spaces and realms. Students will learn practical tools for deep listening to the particular needs and laments of place and community and discerning the formative work of convening missional groups unto the ultimate goal of flourishing for all. This educational experience is profoundly formative, preparing and daring leaders to attend to God's active presence in their own lives and the work of God in their local communities and contexts.

Shared Program Learning Outcomes

All Master of Arts in Theology & Culture share three common Program Learning Outcomes.

Upon successful completion of the Master of Arts in Theology & Culture program, graduates will be able to:

- Articulate insight into one's formative stories in the context of identities, cultures, places, and people, in order to embody a way of being and vocation as an expression of their understanding of God, self, and neighbor.
- 2. Develop, cultivate, and apply approaches to scripture and theology that attend to a diversity of possible perspectives and that lead to courage, imagination, and action.
- 3. Listen deeply, appreciatively, and with cultural responsiveness to the ecological and human communities they seek to serve, to discern the ongoing movement of God in those settings.

In addition to the shared MATC Program Learning Outcomes (listed above), graduates of the MATC: Ministry program will be able to

- 4. Discern and assess the particularities of ministry settings in the development of contextualized initiatives for convening, forming, and sustaining faith-based communities as local expressions of Christ's presence.
- 5. Cultivate collaborative and adaptive leadership capacity for guiding their local faith community into faithful collective practice for the flourishing of their place and all its inhabitants.

Degree Requirements

The M.A. in Theology & Culture degrees are conferred upon the attainment of certain academic and personal requirements. In addition to the graduate school requirements, degree candidates must:

- Give evidence of a level of personal maturity and stability that is consistent with ministry vocations.
- Complete all courses in the prescribed M.A. in Theology & Culture curriculum with a minimum grade point average of 2.7.
- Attend the four (4) required residencies.

M.A. in Theology & Culture: Ministry Low-Residency Curriculum (39 credit hours)

Course Number	Course Name	Credit Hours
Spiritual Formation Studies		3
SFD 517R	Service & Sustainability: Action, Reflection, and Resilience (RESIDENCY)	3
Bible & Textual Inte	erpretation	6
BTI 515R	Engaging the Bible: Genre, History, and Context (RESIDENCY)	3
BTI 5250	Interpreting the Bible: Exegesis, Hermeneutics, and Community	3
Interdisciplinary St	udies	9
IDS 5010	Intersections: Interdisciplinary Inquiry & Psychological Frameworks	2
IDS 5020	Intersections: Biblical Traditions & Theological Formations	2
IDS 5030	Intersections: Textual Integrations	1
IDS 5040	Critical Reading Lab	1
IDS 5050	Contextual Learning Lab	1
IDS 520R/521R	Listening Lab Part I & II (RESIDENCY)	2
Theology & Cultural Engagement		9
TCE 5330	Theories of Change: Community Leadership	3
TCE 5360	Practices of Change: Apprenticeship in Ministry	3
TCE 5370	Christology in Historical Context	3
TCE 5380	Mission & Faithful Presence	3
TCE 546O	Constructive Theology: Issues, Critiques, and Doctrine	3
Capstone/Vocational Development		6
TCE 555R	Gathering & Becoming: The Gathering of Christian Communities (RESIDENCY)	3
TCE 556R	Listening & Leading: The Spiritual Care of Christian Communities (RESIDENCY)	3
	TOTAL CREDITS FOR MATC DEGREE	39

Master of Arts in Counseling Psychology

The Seattle School of Psychology & Theology approaches the human condition rooted in the belief that we are created, known, wounded, and healed in the context of relationship. Given that, a relational hermeneutic informs our theoretical approaches to psychotherapy. Our theories are informed by the wisdom of trinitarian theology and are primarily psychodynamic in nature, with an emphasis on British Object Relations, Contemporary Relational Psychoanalysis, Interpersonal Neurobiology, and Systems Theory, Trauma Theory. Each of these theories find places of intersection and contrast, but all concur with the latest research that change in psychotherapy is predicated on the quality and responsiveness of the therapeutic relationship.

We consider the therapeutic relationship as being the foundational space where persons can engage and reflect on their most formative experiences and begin to re-imagine them into greater complexity, imagination, deeper meaning and a greater capacity to serve God and neighbor through transforming relationships. Given our relational treatment approach, the program distinguishes itself through a curriculum deeply committed to the development of the self of the therapist. The program provides and nourishes opportunities for self-growth and transformation by engaging the mind, body, and soul towards a deeper personal awareness needed to facilitate healing and transformation alongside others.

The MACP degree prepares graduates for counseling vocations with diverse populations in counseling centers, community mental health clinics, private practice, family services, residential and outpatient treatment programs, churches and other Christian ministry contexts.

The program is designed to meet the educational requirements for licensure as a mental health counselor in the state of Washington. It is the responsibility of the individual applicant to be aware of the educational content requirements leading to licensure or certification in her or his intended state of residence.

Program Learning Outcomes

- 1. Demonstrate the skills necessary for mental health licensure and practice, including:
 - a. knowledge and capacity to counsel individuals, families and groups
 - b. knowledge and practice of professional counseling ethical codes
 - c. assessment, diagnosis, counseling theory, practice skills and interventions
 - d. awareness of diversities in individual, communal, and systemic categories; particularly issues of power and privilege.
- 2. Demonstrate the capacity for life-long personal and professional formation, spiritually, psychologically and culturally, through a growing capacity to
 - a. critically examine one's own story, intrapsychic and interpersonal patterns, and the impact of cultural locatedness.
 - b. engage in effective dialogue in service of working with others in a professional counseling capacity.
 - c. critically reflect on and respond to one's professional moral and social responsibilities within contexts, cultures, and systems of power.
- 3. Demonstrate the ability to integrate theology and psychology towards reconciling and transformative relationships.

Degree Requirements

The MACP is conferred upon the attainment of certain academic and personal requirements. In addition to the general graduate school requirements, degree candidates must:

- Give evidence of a level of personal maturity and stability that is consistent with counseling-related vocations
- Complete all courses in the prescribed MACP curriculum with a minimum grade point average of 2.7.
- Students must fulfill a minimum 40 hours of psychotherapy (session should be a minimum of 45-50 minutes each).
- Attend the six (6) required residencies (this requirement applies to low-residency students only).

MACP Curriculum - On-campus (66 credit hours)

Course Number	Course Name	Credit Hours
Counseling Studie	s	36
CSL 502	History & Systems	3
CSL 503	Professional Ethics & Law	3
CSL 509	Social & Cultural Diversities	3
CSL 510	Human Growth & Development	3
CSL 516	Research & Statistics	3
CSL 517	Family Systems	3
CSL 518	Group Therapy	3
CSL 542	Helping Relationships I	3
CSL 543	Helping Relationships II	3
CSL 544	Assessment, Appraisal, & Diagnosis	3
CSL 545	Psychopathology	3
CSL 553	Pre-Internship Counseling Practicum	3
Interdisciplinary S	itudies	9
IDS 5010	Intersections: Interdisciplinary Inquiry & Psychological Frameworks	2
IDS 5020	Intersections: Biblical Traditions & Theological Formations	2
IDS 5030	Intersections: Textual Integrations	1
IDS 5040	Critical Reading Lab	1
IDS 5050	Contextual Learning Lab	1
IDS 520R/521R	Listening Lab Part I & II	2
Theology & Cultur	ral Engagement - CHOOSE 4 credits from the following:	4
TCE 540	God & Persons	2
TCE 541	Spirit & Trauma	2
TCE 542	Christ & Hospitality	2
TCE 543	God, Gender, & Sexuality	2
TCE 544	The Triune God & Creation	2
TCE 545	Beauty, Brokenness, & the Cross	2
Bible & Textual In	terpretation	3
BTI 507	Biblical Survey	3
Capstone/Vocatio	nal Development	4
CSL 530	Internship I	2
CSL 531	Internship II	2
General Electives		8
Non-counseling re	elated elective	2
	TOTAL CREDITS FOR MACP DEGRE	E 66

MACP Curriculum - Low-residency (66 credit hours)

Course Number	Course Name	Credit Hours
Counseling Studies		36
CSL 502	History & Systems	3
CSL 503	Professional Ethics & Law	3
CSL 509	Social & Cultural Diversities	3
CSL 510	Human Growth & Development	3
CSL 516	Research & Statistics	3
CSL 517	Family Systems	3
CSL 518	Group Therapy	3
CSL 542	Helping Relationships I	3
CSL 543	Helping Relationships II	3
CSL 544	Assessment, Appraisal, & Diagnosis	3
CSL 545	Psychopathology	3
CSL 553	Pre-Internship Counseling Practicum	3
Interdisciplinary S	tudies	9
IDS 5010	Intersections: Interdisciplinary Inquiry & Psychological Frameworks	2
IDS 5020	Intersections: Biblical Traditions & Theological Formations	2
IDS 5030	Intersections: Textual Integrations	1
IDS 5040	Critical Reading Lab	1
IDS 5050	Contextual Learning Lab	1
IDS 520R/521R	Listening Lab Part I & II	2
Theology & Cultur	ral Engagement - CHOOSE 4 credits from the following:	4
TCE 540	God & Persons	2
TCE 541	Spirit & Trauma	2
TCE 542	Christ & Hospitality	2
TCE 543	God, Gender, & Sexuality	2
TCE 544	The Triune God & Creation	2
TCE 545	Beauty, Brokenness, & the Cross	2
Bible & Textual In	terpretation	3
BTI 507	Biblical Survey	3
Capstone/Vocatio	nal Development	4
CSL 530	Internship I	2
CSL 531	Internship II	2
General Electives		8
Non-counseling re	elated elective	2
	TOTAL CREDITS FOR MACP DEGREE	66

MACP + CTA - On-campus (72 credit hours)

MACP with Concentration in Trauma & Abuse

	MACP with Concentration in T	rauma & Abuse
Course Number	Course Name	Credit Hours
Counseling Studies		46
CSL 502	History & Systems	3
CSL 503	Professional Ethics & Law	3
CSL 509	Social & Cultural Diversities	3
CSL 510	Human Growth & Development	3
CSL 514	Issues of Abuse	2
CSL 516	Research & Statistics	3
CSL 517	Family Systems	3
CSL 518	Group Therapy	3
CSL 542	Helping Relationships I	3
CSL 543	Helping Relationships II	3
CSL 544	Assessment, Appraisal, & Diagnosis	3
CSL 545	Psychopathology	3
CSL 553	Pre-Internship Counseling Practicum	3
CSL 564	Assessment & Treatment of Trauma & Abuse	2
CSL 566	CTA Practicum A: Story Workshop	1
CSL 556	CTA Practicum B: Engaging Trauma from a Narrative Lens	2
CSL 557/558	CTA Practicum C Parts I & II: Narrative Focused Trauma Care Level II	3
Interdisciplinary S	tudies	9
IDS 5010	Intersections: Interdisciplinary Inquiry & Psychological Frameworks	2
IDS 5020	Intersections: Biblical Traditions & Theological Formations	2
IDS 503O	Intersections: Textual Integrations	1
IDS 5040	Critical Reading Lab	
IDS 505O	Contextual Learning Lab	
IDS 520R/521R	Listening Lab Part I & II	2
Theology & Cultural Engagement		4
TCE 541		
PLUS CHOOS	E 2 credits from the following:	•
TCE 540	God & Persons TCE 544 The Triune God & Creation	2
TCE 542	Christ & Hospitality TCE 545 Beauty, Brokenness & the Cross	2
TCE 543	God, Gender, & Sexuality	2
Bible & Textual Int	erpretation	3
BTI 507	Biblical Survey	3
Capstone/Vocational Development		4
CSL 530	Internship I	2
CSL 531	Internship II	
General Electives		2
Non-counseling re	lated elective	2
Concentration Elec	ctives	2
Choose 1	SFD 519 Evil, Abuse, & Spiritual Warfare; CSL 512 Substance Abuse; OR CSL 561 Interpersonal Neurobiology	2
	TOTAL CREDITS FOR MACP+CTA DEGREI	72

MACP + BOR - On-campus (72 credit hours)

MACP with a Concentration in Psychoanalytic Psychology: British Object Relations

Course Number	Course Name	Credit Hours
Counseling Studie	es ·	42
CSL 502	History & Systems	3
CSL 503	Professional Ethics & Law	3
CSL 509	Social & Cultural Diversities	3
CSL 510	Human Growth & Development	3
CSL 516	Research & Statistics	3
CSL 517	Family Systems	3
CSL 518	Group Therapy	3
CSL 542	Helping Relationships I	3
CSL 543	Helping Relationships II	3
CSL 544	Assessment, Appraisal, & Diagnosis	3
CSL 545	Psychopathology	3
CSL 553	Pre-Internship Counseling Practicum	3
CSL 570	Infant Observation	1
CSL 571	Infant Observation	2
CSL 572	Infant Observation	1
CSL 573	Elements of British Object Relations I	1
CSL 574	Elements of British Object Relations II	1
Interdisciplinary S	Studies	9
IDS 5010	Intersections: Interdisciplinary Inquiry & Psychological Frameworks	2
IDS 5020	Intersections: Biblical Traditions & Theological Formations	2
IDS 5030	Intersections: Textual Integrations	1
IDS 5040	Critical Reading Lab	1
IDS 5050	Contextual Learning Lab	1
IDS 520R/521R	Listening Lab Part I & II	2
Theology & Cultural Engagement - CHOOSE 4 credits from the following:		4
TCE 540	God & Persons	2
TCE 541	Spirit & Trauma	2
TCE 542	Christ & Hospitality	2
TCE 543	God, Gender, & Sexuality	2
TCE 544	The Triune God & Creation	2
TCE 545	Beauty, Brokenness, & the Cross	2
Bible & Textual In	terpretation	3
BTI 507	Biblical Survey	3
Capstone/Vocation	onal Development	4
CSL 530	Internship I	2
CSL 531	Internship II	2
General Electives		8
Non-counseling r	elated elective	2
	TOTAL CREDITS FOR MACP+BOR DEGREE	72

Psychotherapy Requirement

At The Seattle School, we believe that continual self-understanding and sensitivity are required as a part of a student's training in the field of counseling. Therefore, students participating in The Seattle School's Counseling Psychology program must satisfy the psychotherapy requirement. Students must provide The Seattle School a signed acknowledgement and release form before the student may begin psychotherapy. Each student must complete a minimum of 40 sessions (45-50 minutes each) of psychotherapy.

The guidelines are as follows:

- All 40 sessions must be completed within a twelve month period.
- The psychotherapy must be individual, couples or family psychotherapy.
- The psychotherapy must be provided by a licensed therapist who satisfies the requirements set forth in the section below.
- Therapy must be completed with one therapist, except as may be otherwise permitted with the written
 consent of the Director of Practicum. Such consent will be given only in those circumstances when it is
 difficult or impossible for the student to continue with the therapist (for example, in the case of the
 death of the therapist, lack of therapist/client fit, breach of the therapist's ethical duties, or the loss of
 the therapist's license to engage in counseling).

The therapist must:

- Hold a Master's or Doctoral Degree in a mental health field or a degree as a Doctor of Medicine (M.D., in the case of a psychiatrist).
- Be licensed by the State of Washington as a Psychologist, Marriage & Family Therapist, Mental Health Counselor, Clinical Social Worker, Advanced Clinical Social Worker or Psychologist, or licensed to practice medicine in the State of Washington, in the case of a psychiatrist (or actively similarly licensed in another state if the student is requesting a waiver based on prior psychotherapy and/or is a low-residency student residing outside Washington. Please see the full policy at theseattleschool.edu for full details).
- Not be a Seattle School faculty member, adjunct faculty member, employee or member of The Seattle School Board of Directors, unless approved by the Director of Practicum.

Upon completion of the required psychotherapy, the student must submit a Psychotherapy Verification Form to the Registrar with all the information completed. Please review the Psychotherapy Verification Form located on theseattleschool.edu/mebsite for completion due dates. The Seattle School recommends that its students provide a copy of the full Psychotherapy Requirement Policy available to prospective therapists to be sure the therapy and the therapists satisfy the requirements of the Policy.

Licensure

Currently, The Seattle School meets licensure requirements for Mental Health Counselors in the state of Washington. It is the responsibility of the student to determine how to meet the mental health licensure requirements for any other state, territory or country in which they will seek mental health licensure. The Seattle School Supervisor Accessibility & Vocational Programs can assist students in locating information on out-of-state mental health licensure. For specific requirements within Washington State, it is recommended for students to start at the Washington State Department of Health (www.doh.wa.gov/) and click on the Licensing/Certification link. For students seeking licensure in other states, this State Licensing Requirements webpage is a good starting point.

Below is a list of courses at The Seattle School that fulfill certain subject content areas that are required by the state of Washington (courses followed with an * are required for the degree *starting in Fall 2021*). Please note that not all of these content areas are required for Washington State Licensure. This list is provided as a reference only and students should refer to the complete licensing requirements at www.doh.wa.gov.

Assessment/diagnosis	CSL 544*, 545*
Ethics/Law	CSL 503*
Counseling Individuals	CSL 542* 543*
Counseling Couples and Families	CSL 517* 524
Developmental Psych (may be child, adolescent, adult or life span)	CSL 510* 524
Abnormal Psychology/Psychopathology	CSL 544* 545*
Research and Evaluation	CSL 516*
Career Developmental Counseling	CSL 511
Multicultural Concerns	CSL 509*
Substance/Chemical Abuse	CSL 512
Abusive Relationships	CSL 514
Chronically Mentally III	CSL 544* 545*
Group Therapy	CSL 518*

COURSE DESCRIPTIONS

Course Suffixes

In the registration system, course suffixes identify the modality in which each course is offered. Low-residency students should select courses ending with an "O" (online) or "R" (residency). On-campus students should select courses ending with an "S" (Seattle). You may also see courses ending with "D" (dual). These classes are taught partly on-campus and partly online over the course of the term. Courses ending with a "T" are travel residencies. Courses ending in "H" are hybrid. For these classes, on-campus students attend in the building, low-residency students attend online, and all students register for the same section. Elective courses that are only offered in one format are open to all students regardless of modality. Most lab-type courses such as listening lab or practicums will allow for cross-registration in either modality-type.

Division of Bible Textual Interpretation (BTI)

BTI 503 - Old Testament Genre (offered for the last time Fall 2022)

3 Credits

This course is an introduction to Old Testament scripture from the perspective of its literary genres. Students examine six major genres: theological history, law, poetry, wisdom, prophecy, and apocalyptic writing. The characteristics of these genres are discussed and students are exposed to extra-biblical examples of each type. Application of the insights from this approach to the study of the Old Testament, to contemporary life, ministry and mission will be included.

BTI 504 – Tell Me the Stories of Jesus: A New Testament Survey (offered for the last time Winter 2023) 3 Credits

This course is a survey of selected books of the New Testament considering them as narrative witnesses to the identity of Jesus and the formation of the Church. The Gospels, the Acts of the Apostles, selected Pauline and general epistles, and the Apocalypse of John are studied, attending to both their content and their literary form.

BTI 507 - Biblical Survey (offered every Spring)

3 Credits

Prerequisite: enrollment in MACP program

This course is a survey of biblical literature that focuses on its genres, literary forms, cultural contexts, and history of reception. Students will confront the risks and rewards of reading ancient texts, the role the reader's social location plays in the act of reading, and wrestle with how these texts can remain in living conversation with contemporary questions and crises. Special attention will be paid throughout to the voices and experiences of marginal figures in the text.

BTI 515 - Engaging the Bible: Genre, History, and Context (offered every Winter) 3 credits

This course provides an overview of biblical literature and interpretive methods to help students cultivate attuned and faithful practices for engaging scripture. By exploring the genres, literary form, cultural contexts, and history of reception of both Testaments, learners will examine "Why" scripture matters. This course prepares people to listen well and wisely to the Biblical text and how it functions dynamically and authoritatively within communities of faith.

BTI 521 – Love in Public: Using the Bible in Social Justice & Transformation (offered *dependent on instructor availability*)

2 Credits

This course will explore the use of the Bible in relation to contemporary social issues. Participants will examine issues such as racism, poverty, sexism, gender violence, sexual orientation in light of a Christocentric Theological Anthropology. Students will identify how a Biblical story of Abundance, embodiment and peacemaking, can do justice in the world.

BTI 522 - Feminist/Womanist Biblical Hermeneutics (offered dependent on instructor availability)

This semi-seminar course studies feminist and womanist theories and their applications to biblical interpretation. We will examine feminist theoretical works with special attention to complex relationship between sexism and other binary modes of "isms" such as racism, heterosexism, and (neo)colonialism and then explore various strategies for applying theoretical insights to ethical biblical interpretation.

BTI 525 - Interpreting the Bible: Exegesis, Hermeneutics, and Community (offered every Fall, starting in 2023) 3 credits

This course guides learners to identity and employ hermeneutic methodologies in listening to biblical text within local contexts. Learners will distinguish, locate, and critically assess the interpretive and meaning-making lenses undergirding readings of the Bible and of the place/peoples they serve. The course will equip learners with exegetical tools to draw text and lived context into conversation. The goal of this course is to bring God's story of New Creation into dynamic dialogue, inviting service as an expression of love for God.

BTI 534 - Advanced Seminar (offered as needed based on faculty interest)

2 Credits

Prerequisites: BTI 504

Students read and discuss biblical texts and/or writings on particular issues in hermeneutics. This second year advanced course allows students to develop their understanding of selected biblical texts and Christian reading strategies in current social and ethical issues.

BTI 570/571 - Integrative Project: Exploring the Future (offered for the last time Fall 2023) 2 OR 3 Credits

Prerequisite: Taken in last year of MDiv or MATC degree program for Fall 2021 and earlier students only An individualized learning experience that creates space for students to draw from their entire The Seattle School experience as they look to their post-graduation ministry and their unique embodiment of text, soul and culture. Blending research methodology with the personal supervision of their advisor (at The Seattle School), students complete the writing of their final integrative project for the MDIV & MATC during their final year. This course is taught consecutively over two trimesters, with one credit earned in each of those terms. MDIV students also add another credit in the Spring term.

BTI 572 - Integrative Project Continuation II

1 credit

For students who need an additional term (beyond the first two) to complete their Integrative Project. See the Integrative Project policy in the Academic Catalog for details.

BTI 575 – Special Topics (offered as needed based on faculty interest)

1 or 2 Credits

A full course description is available on individual course syllabi and is particular to each course.

Division of Counseling Studies (CSL)

CSL 502 - History & Systems (offered every Fall)

3 Credits

This course offers students a survey of the historical counseling theories and practices. Each theoretical model is evaluated through the lens of psychodynamic methodology and its efficacy in working with diverse populations and settings. Students will increase their awareness of the lineage that precedes the "birth" of Western psychology, and examine emerging spiritual, relational, and community practices that offer an alternative to Western psychology.

CSL 503 - Professional Ethics & Law (offered every Spring)

3 Credits

Prerequisites: CSL 544; CSL 553

Corequisite: CSL 543

This course provides an overview of professional ethics and Washington State law in the practice of counseling. Students will become familiar with professional ethical norms as well as common legal regulations. Additional topics include professionalism, licensure, moral responsibility in responding to the violation of human dignity, and issues of power and privilege. Students examine the impact of their cultural locatedness on the ethical decision-making processes in light of the difficult decisions facing the professional counselor.

CSL 509 - Social & Cultural Diversities (offered every Winter)

3 Credits

Prerequisites: IDS 501; IDS 521

In this course, students will be introduced to theories and models of multicultural counseling, cultural identity development, and social justice and advocacy. By gaining a deeper understanding of power, privilege, and oppression, students will examine their own experiences and develop strategies for identifying and eliminating barriers, prejudices, and processes of intentional and unintentional oppression and discrimination in mental health counseling. Through deeply engaging a central theme related to counseling in diverse contexts, the course provides a framework for thinking about the effects of power and privilege for counselors and clients in ways that can be applied to topics such as aging, culture disability, ethnicity, race, religion/spirituality, gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, marital status/partnership, language preference, and socioeconomic status.

CSL 510 - Human Growth & Development (offered every Winter)

3 Credits

Prerequisite: CSL 502 (recommended)

This course provides an overview of major developmental theories that include cognitive, moral/spiritual, psychological, interpersonal, and social perspectives across the lifespan from conception to death. It is understood that development does not take place in isolation. Human development is deeply embedded within and is inseparable from the context of family, social networks/traditions, race/ethnicity, and culture. Particular emphasis is placed upon the integrative and interactive functions of the self-in-relation. Formation of the self is dynamic as it is being formed, informed, and transformed within the complexities of personal and systemic influences.

CSL 511 - Vocational & Occupational Direction (offered every other Fall)

3 Credits

The course will examine theories of career selection and development. The course is also a consideration of the necessary tension between vocation and occupation and introduces several assessment tools as it explores lifestyle and career decision-making issues. Career counseling models and techniques will also be examined as the student considers their career choice as a vocational call.

CSL 512 - Substance Abuse: The Nature of Addictions (offered every other Spring)

3 Credits

Prerequisites: IDS 520, IDS 521

This course is designed to provide foundational concepts to understand addictive processes and provide appropriate therapy. The course explores existential, theological, and biological foundations and provides instruction in assessment and treatment of those who are drug or alcohol addicted. Individual, family, and community issues surrounding addictions and abuse are covered.

CSL 513 - Sexual Disorders (offered based on instructor availability)

2 Credits

Prerequisite: IDS 520, IDS 521, CSL 517

This class addresses the physical, relational, ethical and theological issues most often encountered in outpatient private practice and the local church that relate to clients struggling with their sexuality and addictive issues in general. The focus will be on understanding the symptoms in light of gender theory, addiction and idolatry. The student will be better equipped to understand and treat a number of paraphilias, gender identity disorders, and normal sexual dysfunctions.

CSL 514 - Issues of Abuse: Sexual Harm and Its Consequences (offered every other Fall)

2 Credits

Prerequisites: IDS 520, IDS 521, CSL 517

This course provides a dynamic and interpersonal overview of the consequences of sexual abuse as well as instruction in working therapeutically with an abuse victim. The course will aid the student in recognition and assessment of various abuse contexts, reporting procedures and prevention programs.

CSL 516 – Research & Statistics (offered every Spring)

3 Credits

This course provides a conceptual framework for understanding common psychological research methodologies, including various types of both quantitative and qualitative methods. Students will be equipped to formulate research questions as well as interpret and apply psychological research to their counseling practice.

CSL 517 - Family Systems (offered every Spring)

2 Credits

Prerequisites: CSL 502, IDS 501

This course utilizes a didactic and experiential format in which to explore therapeutic work with family and other systems. Theoretical foundations and developments of systems theory will be explored to introduce the student to the field of couples and family therapy. Clinical work with couples and families will be considered from an ecological/systemic perspective with specific emphasis on the following family factors and dynamics: life cycle, development, attachment, and systemic issues as relevant to contemporary family cultures.

CSL 518 - Group Therapy: The Healing Context of Community (offered every Spring)

3 Credits

Prerequisites: CSL 544, CSL 553

The Group Counseling course is designed to provide students preparing to enter a helping profession with an understanding of the theory and practice of group counseling. In the course students will explore different theoretical approaches to counseling groups; basic principles of group dynamics, which include leadership tasks, group developmental stages, and member roles; and basic group counseling skills including establishing, leading, and evaluating various types of counseling groups. Consideration will be given to ethical, legal, and professional issues, and each student will have the experience of being a member in a peer-led practice group.

CSL 524 – Introduction to Counseling Children & Adolescents (offered every Fall; odd years on-campus, even years online)

2 Credits

Prerequisite: CSL 510

This course utilizes a didactic and experiential format in which to explore therapeutic work with children and adolescents. Through reading, class time, and role play, this course provides a foundation to facilitate the growth and development of the student's clinical work with children and adolescents. Clinical work with children and adolescents will be considered from a biopsychosocial perspective with specific emphasis on cognitive and emotional development, attachment and systemic issues as relevant to today's child and adolescent culture.

CSL 530/531 - Internship I and Internship II (offered every Fall/Winter)

2 Credits

Prerequisites: CSL 502, CSL 503, CSL 510, IDS 521, CSL 553, CSL 543, CSL 545 (Recommended: CSL 509)

The purpose of the counseling Internship is to provide a professional setting for interns to gather experience and to receive supervision regarding their clinical work. This setting will provide the intern with supervised experiences in

preparation for professional practice as a counselor. The Intern will have an opportunity to develop and practice these skills in a variety of clinical settings under the guidance of an on-site supervisor.

Concurrent with a student's Internship experience, the Internship I & II courses provides a setting for students to observe, explore and learn from their clinical experiences, specifically, what arises within the clinical hour, including pre-session and post-session. This setting allows each student the opportunity to discuss and learn from their Internship experiences.

CSL 532 - Internship III (offered every Spring)

2 credits

Prerequisites: CSL 530, CSL 531

Students who wish to continue seeing clients at their internship site during Spring term (and are still enrolled as active students) OR have not completed their required hours of internship may register for Internship III. Note that internship credits beyond the required Internship I and II do not count toward the total credits required within the degree.

CSL 534 – Advanced Seminar (offered as needed based on faculty interest)

2 Credits

Prerequisites: IDS 520, IDS 521

Students read and discuss selected texts related to the topics of philosophy, theology and psychology. This second year advanced course allows the student to further develop and integrate theory and praxis.

CSL 538 - MACP Practicum III: Psychotherapy in the Professional Setting (offered for the last time Winter 2023) 2 Credits

Prerequisites: CSL 543, CSL 545, CSL 553

This practicum functions as a synthesis of the MACP. It provides an observed therapeutic experience with a senior therapist followed by class and faculty feedback and evaluation. The student interacts with issues of interviewing, assessment, diagnosing and treatment, as well as the use of therapeutic relationship to address client concerns. The course draws on the theoretical categories presented throughout the degree as well as the training experiences in practicum and internships.

CSL 542 - Helping Relationships I (offered every Winter)

3 Credits

Prerequisites: CSL 502, CSL 544, CSL 553

This course offers an intensive opportunity to study relational psychotherapy and has been developed in the proseminar method. Maximum participation is required of each student. The goal of this course is to gain understanding into the students' motivation for becoming a psychotherapist, their conflict style and its impact on the therapeutic relationship. Students will be required to create frameworks in setting up positive therapeutic practices (i.e., theoretical orientation, therapeutic outcomes and a therapeutic frame) and apply therapeutic skills from a relational perspective.

CSL 543 - Helping Relationships II (offered every Spring)

3 Credits

Prerequisites: CSL 542

This advanced course continues to develop students' understanding of therapeutic processes, skills and techniques crucial for effective psychotherapy treatments, with particular emphasis on adult psychotherapy.

CSL 544 - Assessment, Appraisal, and Diagnosis (offered every Fall)

3 Credits

Prerequisites: CSL 510, IDS 520, IDS 521

This course provides a survey for theoretical foundation in understanding clinical psychopathology. The class addresses developmental and biological categories of mental disorders as well as theological underpinnings of development. Students will explore theoretical material regarding clinical disorders and disorders of the self. The class addresses diagnostic categories of psychopathology, assessment, treatment, understanding, and the use of the current Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders-V.

CSL 545 - Psychopathology (offered every Winter)

3 Credits

Prerequisite: CSL 544

This second course in Psychopathology builds upon the nosology and theoretical foundation in Psychopathology I. A multidisciplinary approach, specifically the bio-psycho-social model of disease are presented. This course covers the use of the current Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders as related to assessment, evaluation, diagnosis, and treatment modalities of personality disorders. Developmental and intrapsychic perspectives are discussed with an emphasis on the treatment of the particular mental spaces and disorders of the self. The course addresses diagnostic categories of psychopathology of personality through mental status examinations and assessment instruments, as well as objective, achievement, neuropsychological, and projective instruments. An overview of the purposes and functions of testing, assessment, screening, problem-solving, counseling, rehabilitation and progress evaluation is covered.

CSL 553 - Pre-Internship Counseling Practicum (offered every Fall)

3 Credits

Prerequisites: IDS 520, IDS 521

Corequisite: CSL 544

This course provides advanced counseling training and builds upon the training experiences of Listening Lab. It provides a supervised training experience with a practicum supervisor as well as peer feedback. Practicum II emphasizes therapeutic conversations, supervised practice counseling with fellow students, and personal exploration as it relates to the practice of counseling. [Description under review]

CSL 556 Engaging Trauma from a Narrative Lens (offered every Winter)

2 Credits

Prerequisites: CSL 544, CSL 553. Course is limited to students enrolled in the Concentration in Trauma & Abuse. This course provides advanced counseling training with the emphasis on engaging trauma and abuse. It builds upon the training experiences gained in Listening Lab I and II, and Practicum II. It utilizes narrative engagement as a method to address explicit and implicit content within a trauma memory/story while honoring that the trauma experience is embodied, re-enacted and survived through various styles of relating. This course involves supervised practice counseling with fellow students, and personal understanding as it relates to the impacts of trauma and abuse.

CSL 557 CTA Practicum C Part I: Narrative Focused Trauma Care Level II Training (offered every Fall) 1 credit

Prerequisites: CSL 503, CSL 543 Course is limited to students enrolled in the Concentration in Trauma & Abuse. This course is the final training in advanced trauma-informed counseling. It builds upon the previous material and experiences gained in CTA Practicum A. It utilizes narrative engagement as the primary avenue to bring integration and healing to trauma and abuse memory/story. In this course students will hone their ability to use previously demonstrated methods to engage sexual harm/abuse. In this course students will progress in their ability to interact with issues of race, sexual and gender identity and other aspects of underrepresentation/marginalization/oppression. The course involves supervised practice counseling with fellow

underrepresentation/marginalization/oppression. The course involves supervised practice counseling with fellow students, and personal understanding as it relates to the impacts of trauma and abuse.

CSL 558 CTA Practicum C Part II: Narrative Focused Trauma Care Level II Training (offered every Winter) 2 credits

Prerequisite: CSL 557 Course is limited to students enrolled in the Concentration in Trauma & Abuse.

This course is the final training in advanced trauma-informed counseling. It builds upon the previous material and experiences gained in CTA Practicum A. It utilizes narrative engagement as the primary avenue to bring integration and healing to trauma and abuse memory/story. In this course students will hone their ability to use previously demonstrated methods to engage sexual harm/abuse. In this course students will progress in their ability to interact with issues of race, sexual and gender identity and other aspects of

underrepresentation/marginalization/oppression. The course involves supervised practice counseling with fellow students, and personal understanding as it relates to the impacts of trauma and abuse.

CSL 560 - Psychopharmacology (offered every other Spring)

1 Credit

Prerequisite: CSL 544

This overview course in psychopharmacology includes the biological, psychological (intrapsychic and interpersonal conflicts and anxieties), and the social model. This course covers the pharmacokinetics, pharmacodynamics, pharmacology of medications of abuse, pharmacology for special populations (child, adolescent, geriatric patients as well as suicidal, and violent patients), and a synthesis of psychopharmacology and psychological therapies in the care of the patient. From a biopsychosocial model, there is an emphasis on understanding of how the ethnic and cultural background of patients influence development, disease expression, the patient-therapist relationship, diagnosis and treatment variations across the globe. Each class of medication will be explored, specifically: the history, mechanism of action, pharmacology, indications with specific clinical syndromes, effects on symptoms, adverse effects, drug interactions, medication compliance and future directions of the particular classes of medications. Through a representative selection of clinical scenarios, cases will be used to illustrate how to apply the concepts in clinical practice settings.

CSL 561 – Interpersonal Neurobiology (offered every Winter; even years on-campus, odd years online)

2 Credits

Prerequisite: IDS 520, IDS 521

This course allows the student to further integrate theory and practice. The course will introduce and explore the expanding data from Neuroscience and Interpersonal Neurobiology and address how this information can be used to enhance the practice of psychotherapy and the movement toward wholeness and integration that can only take place within the context of relationship. The course will also provide experiential learning and practice opportunities in a pro-seminar format.

CSL 563 – The Battle of Shame (offered every Winter; odd years on-campus, even years online) 2 Credits

This course utilizes a didactic and experiential format in which to further explore the topic of shame. Shame is often kept hidden and leads us to experience the core human fear of being left and abandoned. This class attempts to discern the origins of shame, examine how shame permeates human relationships and provide insight into how shame can be addressed within a therapeutic context.

CSL 564 Assessment & Treatment of Trauma & Abuse (offered every Spring)

2 Credits

Prerequisites: CSL 544

The purpose of this class is to discuss topics related to the treatment of victims/survivors of interpersonal violence (e.g., childhood sexual abuse, sexual assault, intimate partner/domestic violence). This class provides a foundation for understanding complex trauma, and trauma recovery, with a focus on trauma-informed treatment with various populations. Also included in this class, is the exploration of the professional's response to trauma, vicarious traumatiza on, grief, and crisis intervention. Finally, students have the chance to review evidence-based practices in the trauma field.

CSL 565 Human Sexuality (offered based on instructor availability)

2 Credits

Human Sexuality is designed to ask questions about the nature of biological sexuality, sexual preference, sexual identity, and desire. The course will seek to explore multiple perspectives to attempt to understand such questions from scientific research, developmental theory, cultural influences, and relational experience. Contemporary scholarship from psychoanalytic literature will be assigned to formulate the bases for class discussion. Students will consider several ways of understanding and working with sexuality in their personal lives and in clinical settings, equipping them to think critically and work effectively in various cultures and systems.

CSL 566 CTA Practicum A: Story Workshop

1 Credit

Course is limited to students enrolled in the Concentration in Trauma & Abuse.

This course provides an introduction to trauma-informed narrative engagement. It introduces the student toward understanding how their own experience within their family of origin helped shape how they interact with themselves and others and how it informed their tragedy/harm experiences. It gives the student the opportunity to interact with their peers to both read aspects of their own "story" and to do the same for others in their group.

CSL 570 Infant Observation I

1 Credit

Course is limited to students enrolled in the Concentration in British Object Relations.

This course introduces the experience of early formation, development in the infant, and the infant in relationship to their mothering figure, other primary caretakers, as well as ultimately to the birthing of the infant's mind. Infant observation focuses on the primary relationships, primitive anxieties, defenses, which later inform clinical work with children, adolescents, and adult patients in psychotherapy. This in vivo learning experience takes place through a weekly observation of the infant with their mothering figure, primary caregiver in their home environment.

CSL 571 Infant Observation II

2 Credits

Course is limited to students enrolled in the Concentration in British Object Relations.

This course introduces the experience of early formation, development in the infant, and the infant in relationship to their mothering figure, other primary caretakers, as well as ultimately to the birthing of the infant's mind. Infant observation focuses on the primary relationships, primitive anxieties, defenses, which later inform clinical work with children, adolescents, and adult patients in psychotherapy. This in vivo learning experience takes place through a weekly observation of the infant with their mothering figure, primary caregiver in their home environment.

CSL 572 Infant Observation III

1 Credit

Course is limited to students enrolled in the Concentration in British Object Relations.

This course introduces the experience of early formation, development in the infant, and the infant in relationship to their mothering figure, other primary caretakers, as well as ultimately to the birthing of the infant's mind. Infant observation focuses on the primary relationships, primitive anxieties, defenses, which later inform clinical work with children, adolescents, and adult patients in psychotherapy. This in vivo learning experience takes place through a weekly observation of the infant with their mothering figure, primary caregiver in their home environment.

CSL 573 Elements of British Object Relations I

1 credit

Course is limited to students enrolled in the Concentration in British Object Relations.

This course introduces British Object Relations theory and fundamental concepts of British Object Relations. This course builds from the experiences in Infant Observation; i.e. the experience of early formation, development in the infant, and the infant in relationship to their mothering figure, other primary caretakers, as well as ultimately to the birthing of the infant's mind.

CSL 574 Elements of British Object Relations II

1 Credit

Course is limited to students enrolled in the Concentration in British Object Relations.

Description TBD

CSL 575 – Special Topics (offered as needed based on faculty interest)

1 or 2 Credits

A full course description is available on individual course syllabi and is particular to each course.

Division of Integration Studies (IDS)

IDS 501 Intersections: Interdisciplinary Inquiry & Psychological Frameworks (offered every Fall)

2 credits

Corequisite: IDS 504

This course will explore interdisciplinary perspectives on complex problems that affect and reveal the human condition, as well as contexts that impact learning, including epistemological frameworks, personal worldviews and hermeneutics, and one's internal world and development of the mind. Issues pertaining to diversities of one's locatedness, experience, oppressive systems and institutionalized marginalization and social fragmentation will all be engaged from an interdisciplinary framework of theology, psychology and biblical studies.

IDS 502 Intersections: Biblical Traditions & Theological Formations (offered every Winter)

2 credits

Prerequisites: IDS 501 Corequisite: IDS 505

This course will explore interdisciplinary perspectives on complex problems that affect biblical interpretive traditions and theological formations. Real-world implications of the doctrine of God, the incarnation of God in Jesus Christ, and the Holy Spirit will be engaged from an interdisciplinary framework of theology, psychology, and biblical studies.

IDS 503 Intersections: Textual Integrations (offered every Spring)

1 credit

Prerequisites: IDS 501, IDS 502

This third Intersections course guides students in the synthesis of the first two Intersections courses. With faculty advising, students will develop a working draft of a theological and psychological anthropology (spanning issues such as economics, politics, culture, etc.) that will serve as an important contribution to the portfolio particular to the student's program of study and as a basis for their vocation.

IDS 504 Critical Reading Lab (offered every Fall)

1 credit

Corequisite: IDS 501

Critical Reading Lab is a companion class to the first term Common Curriculum classes. In this course, students explore what it means to know and to learn within the graduate curriculum, particularly as it relates to interdisciplinary and integrative work. Students will explore various ways of knowing as part of a journey of discovery in a smaller group format with other students.

IDS 505 Contextual Learning Lab (offered every Winter)

1 credit

Corequisite: IDS 502

This course grounds interdisciplinary inquiry within the reality of students' everyday lives. It equips students to listen as storied, located, and bodied creatures, providing skills for ways of loving God and neighbor within their place's ecosystem unto the common good.

IDS 510 Interdisciplinary Inquiry & Method (offered for the last time Fall 2022)

2 credits

Required course for all MATC students starting Fall 2021 and earlier in the Interdisciplinary Track. Interdisciplinary studies involves integration of insights and theories in order to answer questions or solve problems in a comprehensive way. But what does that mean exactly and how does one do it well? In this course students will explore interdisciplinary approaches to examine theological and socio-cultural issues. Together we will engage said theories and methods, grounding these practices in concrete, contemporary explorations.

IDS 511 Critical Analysis & Interdisciplinary Application (offered for the last time Winter 2023)

1 credit

Prerequisite: IDS 510

Required course for all MATC students starting Fall 2021 and earlier in the Interdisciplinary Track.

Critique differs greatly from criticism and yet, the two are often conflated. While one opens paths for dialogue and engagement, the other shuts down conversation and forecloses connection. Critical analysis does not involve finding fault but rather, helps us understand the motivations, intentions, and possibilities for discourse of a particular piece of work. In this way critical analysis opens us to the why's and how's of an argument's power and effectiveness. This seminar builds off of the work done in IDS 510: Constructive Critique for Change: Interdisciplinary Methods, as such, students will be applying varying critical discourses and research methodologies related to a topic/theme of their choosing in order to engage more deeply those methods and applications as they relate to interdisciplinary critical analysis. Students by way of these explorations become clearer presenters of their thoughts and positions, become better critical thinkers in today's complex and ever-changing world, and learn to be deep explorers of text, soul, and culture in ways that foster engagement and connection.

IDS 520 and 521 - Listening Lab

2 Credits (given over 2 terms, every Fall and Winter)

This lab provides opportunities for students to engage with interdisciplinary theory and praxis related to deep listening. By tending to the data of experience at three levels (intrapsychic, interpersonal, and group as a whole), students will cultivate a relational stance marked by observation, openness, and curiosity. The frame of Listening Lab is designed to foster a getting-to-know posture rather than a knowing posture, working within the frame of the lab to explore and express one's own realities, internal and external, past and present, personal and collective.

FI - Frameworks & Intersections

0 Credits

This course is intended to provide incoming students with context for learning methods employed at The Seattle School, academic resources, and other information to help them be successful in the classroom.

Division of Relational Leadership Ministry Practice (RLM)

RLM 503 - Life Together I: Ancient-Future Focus for Church and Worship (offered for the last time Fall 2022) 2 Credits

Prerequisites: Concurrent with RLM 530

This course considers missional leadership for church and worship by surveying the Church's past and continuing story through lenses of both struggle and strength. The interanimation of text, church, and culture in the ongoing process of God's people incarnating Christ is highlighted. Praxis-focused field experience (i.e. preaching, pastoral care, worship, chaplaincy, etc.), and classroom instruction are integrated with an intentional community setting. Students will develop a practical ecclesiology.

RLM 504 - Life Together II: Relational Ethics for Church and Leadership (offered for the last time Winter 2023) 2 Credits

Prerequisites: RLM 503, concurrent with RLM 531

As the second of a two-part course combining praxis-focused field experience, classroom instruction and intentional community, this course considers applied relationality for church and leadership with a focus on pastoral ethics and intentional, creative care for the faith community. Students will be expected to develop a personal philosophy of ministry.

RLM 505 – Homiletics: Crafting Transformational Moments (offered for the last time Winter 2024) 2 Credits

Prerequisites: BTI 502

This course explores the nuances of preaching and public communication. By combining theory, preparation and practice, the course places emphasis on the art of listening well to the text, soul and culture to craft moments where transformation has space to occur. Students are given the opportunity to develop consistent and excellent communication skills in a variety of settings.

RLM 520 - Being the Word on the Street: Developing Intercultural Credibility in Pastoral Care in a Complex & Diverse Setting (offered for the last time Winter 2023)

2 Credits

This course prepares the student to engage and embrace culturally diverse contexts. Through the development of an anthropological understanding of culture this course considers new ways to navigate differences between the self and the "other". Students will examine unique interpersonal (social bias) and sociological (power) dynamics in diverse settings. This exploration will assist students in serving the church and community in culturally responsive ways.

RLM 530 - MDiv Practicum II: Embodying Christ (offered for the last time Fall 2022)

1 Credit

Prerequisites: IDS 520, IDS 521

Corequisite: RLM 503

This course provides advanced ministry practice building upon the experiences of Counseling Listening Lab I with a focus on vocational Christian ministry. MDiv Practicum II explores incarnational and relational ministry affording students the opportunity to further discern their unique calls to ministry.

RLM 531 - MDiv Practicum III: Embodying Christ (offered for the last time Winter 2023)

1 Credit

Prerequisites: RLM 530, concurrent with RLM 504

Students will be expected to demonstrate their understanding of relational ethics, pastoral care and their own philosophy of ministry. Students will present, in oral and written form, their theory of pastoral engagement in praxis.

RLM 575 – Special Topics (offered as needed, based on faculty interest)

1 or 2 Credits

A full course description is available on individual course syllabi and is particular to each course.

RLM 582 and 583 - Theology and Culture Apprenticeship I & II

2 Credits (1 credit/course) For MATC students starting Fall 2021 and earlier only.

The MATC Apprenticeship is a faculty approved and supervised self-selected community-based two (2) credit learning opportunity. Students will self-select a human service or artistic organization that can help them fine tune their creative, entrepreneurial and service skills. Based on the mission of the selected community service organizations students will establish an applicable learning contract with an on-site supervisor. The apprenticeship agreement will name an agreed upon beginning and end date as well as the hours to be completed.

Division of Spiritual Formation/Direction Studies (SFD)

SFD 502 – Readings in Christian Spirituality (offered based on instructor availability)

1 credit

This course provides a historical overview of the development of Christian spirituality and faith practice. Saints throughout the ages have modeled what it means to grow in Christ-likeness. This course equips the student with an understanding of the value of prayer, meditation, and service. How does the Christian change and grow? Into what, and why? And how might our contemporary culture give us glimpses of the inclination toward spiritual things?

SFD 504 – Spirituality and Sabbath (offered based on instructor availability)

2 Credits

This course examines the biblical and theological understanding of the Sabbath, consulting both Jewish and Christian thinkers. Students consider the benefits of integrating Sabbath-living into faith practice.

SFD 517 - Service and Sustainability: Action, Reflection, and Resilience (offered every Fall) 3 credits

This course invites students to integrate spiritual care, sustainability, theology, in their work for service and change in God's world. Care of the Soul means illuminating how action and contemplation work together to inform the health and sustainability of one's vocational call in order to imagine a lifelong commitment to beauty and justice in community. The question explored in this course is how the Christ call of self-denial does not become a self-deprecating denial of self in this sacred service in the world.

SFD 518 - Way of Life (offered every Fall and Winter)

1 credit

Description TBD

SFD 519 - Evil, Abuse & Spiritual Warfare (offered every other Fall)

2 Credits

This course addresses egregious intentional psychological and physical harm of another (evil) and the resultant effects on personality, relationships and encounter with God. The class will consider interventions that engage the trauma of evil through spiritual warfare.

SFD 521 - The Artist's Way (offered every Spring)

2 Credits

This course is about discovering and recovering your creative self. It is for anyone interested in practicing the art of creative living. It is about both being creative and putting that creativity into practice. We will explore what it means to BE an artist and a Christian and how the arts can inspire and transform humanity's relationship to God, community and scripture. We will also discover how creativity can enliven our understanding and communication of Counseling, Theology and Scripture.

SFD 522 - C.S. Lewis: Theological Perspectives for Spiritual Formation (offered based on instructor availability) 2 Credits

This course will examine the literary legacy of one of the twentieth century's foremost Christian authors. More specifically, it will explore the theological perspectives of C. S. Lewis, perspectives that speak of God, humanity, nature, love, heaven, hell, prayer, pain, suffering and ethics. Students will critically reflect on how these insights might inform, nourish, challenge and support their own relationship with God and God's work in the world.

SFD 523 – Spirituality & the Arts (offered every other Winter)

2 Credits

This course provides an overview of contemporary art worldview and examines its implications for a Christian's engagement with culture. Each participant will be encouraged to examine their role in being God's masterpieces (poiema) given cultural stewardship over all of culture.

SFD 524 - From the Heart: A Contemplative Approach to Ministry (offered based on instructor availability) 1 Credit

This course is an exploration of contemplative ministry. Through reading, lecture, discussion and contemplative exercises students will examine ways of structuring, practicing and being in ministry that places prayer, discernment, relationship, compassion and authentic action as the primary elements of the life of ministry.

SFD 526 - Celtic Spirituality (offered based on instructor availability) 1 Credit

This is an introduction to a period of history in which Christianity developed somewhat differently in the British Isles and somewhat independently from the Church on the Continent. The "Golden Age of Saints and Scholars" which characterized the 5th-8th centuries in Ireland, Wales, Scotland, Brittany, Cornwall and The Isle of Man continues to have an impact on the Church today. We will examine the ethos, worldview, and values of the Christian culture of that era, and how it speaks across the centuries to the Christian Communities of today.

SFD 575 – Special Topics (offered as needed based on faculty interest) 1 or 2 Credits

A full course description is available on individual course syllabi and is particular to each course.

SFD 601 - Spiritual Formation: Prayer, Presence and Practice (offered for the last time Winter 2023) 2 Credits

This course is intended to enable exploration of approaches to prayer, including various spiritual practices for individuals and group practices. We will examine how Christians are formed as individuals and in community, and will see values and practices from a range of sources, including the desert fathers and mothers, Benedictines, Franciscans, Celts, eastern Orthodox and Jesuits. Our practices will provide an introduction to the soul feast available to feed and nourish the student for a lifelong relationship with the Trinity for the benefit of the world in which we live.

Division of Theology and Cultural Engagement (TCE)

TCE 501 - Critical Social Theory (offered based on instructor availability)

2 Credits

Prerequisites: IDS 520, IDS 521

The class is designed for mid-year to advanced students who are in need of a solid and deeper background in the theoretical understandings of professional critical social theorists. We will examine critical theory, postmodern philosophies, feminist theory, multiculturalism, queer theory, masculinity studies, cultural studies, critical race social theories, and religion. We will compare critical theories, critical social theories, and religion. We will compare critical theories, critical social theories, and their responses in the context of the current religious nationalism occurring in the United States. What are the strengths and weaknesses of the discussed approaches in respect to textual interpretation, social analysis, and the development of social movements? What are (or should be) the community church's response to questions raised in these conversations?

TCE 502 - Mission as Faithful Presence (offered for the last time Fall 2024) 2 Credits

This course explores Christian mission and missional leadership as faithful presence in the way of Jesus in relationship with the church, with others, with place, with the leader's own story, and with the Shalom of God. Christian mission as faithful presence emerges from Triune *mission Dei* theology marking a 20th Century paradigm shift in the understanding and practice of mission from a task to complete, to a holistic way of being for both the person and the community of Christ.

TCE 503 - Our Religious Impulse: Encountering Religious Otherness in a Multi-faith Context (offered for the last time Spring 2024)

2 Credits

In this course we will explore the religious impulse. We will look into how religious ideologies fill the void for power, control, security, peace and give voice to joy and pain. We will create a working definition for faith and be introduced to the process of faith development. Students will become familiar with the primary world religions and how they connect to our Christian narrative. We will also analyze the six basic streams of Christian spirituality. We will wrestle with what it means to be Christian in the world and what is Good News in pluralistic society.

TCE 506 - Church History I: From Jesus to the Renaissance (offered for the last time Fall 2023) 3 Credits

This course examines the unfolding narrative of Christianity from its beginnings through the Renaissance, along with the history of Christian mission and the part Christians and Christianity played in the larger social history of each era. It seeks to integrate doctrinal, intellectual, liturgical, and ecclesiastic history with an understanding of how Christians lived their daily lives.

TCE 507 - Church History II: From the Enlightenment to the Present (offered for the last time Fall 2022) 3 Credits

This course examines the continuing narrative of Christianity from the Protestant Reformation to the present. Emphasis is placed on the part Christians and Christianity played in the larger Western social history of each era. It seeks to integrate doctrinal, intellectual, liturgical, and ecclesiastic history with an understanding of how Christians lived their daily lives.

TCE 510 - Word & Sacrament: Theology of Spiritual Formation (offered for the last time Spring 2024) 2 Credits

This course provides the historical, theological and biblical foundation of Christian spiritual theology, its form and function as it is practiced in pastoral care, individual, group, and institutional settings.

TCE 511 - Theology and the Artistic Impulse (offered every other Winter) 2 Credits

This course will explore a theology of creativity as understood through our identity as persons made in the image of God. In the process, we will look at the vocational call of the artist as well as the more general call to create in and engage with the created order at large. This class will use a variety of 'texts' – e.g., literature, music and visual art – in order to search out the least inadequate 'language' in which to both describe and praise God.

TCE 513A - Advanced Seminar (offered for the last time Fall 2022 and Winter 2023)

1 Credit

An individualized learning experience, which creates spaces for students to draw from their entire Seattle School experience as they look to their post-graduation ministry and their unique embodiment of text, soul, and culture. Blending research methodology with the personal supervision of a Seattle School advisor, students complete the writing of their final integrative project for their MDiv & MATC during their final year. MDiv & MATC students must complete an Integrative Project in order to graduate.

Through active participation in this guided self-study, students are expected to synthesize their cumulative Seattle School coursework, readings, and research as they missionally articulate their understanding and integration of text, soul, and culture as relating to their future ministries. Each student will produce either a major paper or report of a major project as the articulation of his or her synthesis.

TCE 528 - Biblical Theology, Narrative and Social Ethics (offered for the last time Spring 2023) 2 Credits

Biblical Theology is an integrative and unitive discipline that seeks to bridge the gap between biblical exegesis and interpretation and theological, practical and ethical application of the Bible in the context of contemporary cultures. While remaining alive to the differences and discontinuities between both Testaments, Biblical Theology also endeavors to look for continuities and connections between them as these apply to the life of scholarship, the life of faith and discipleship and the mission of the church.

TCE 532 - Theology of Eroticism (offered every other Winter)

2 Credits

This class will address the development of a biblical theology of sexual eroticism from the vantage point of the book, Song of Solomon. Special emphasis will be placed on addressing the sexual issues faced by students who live in a sexually casual and charged culture in order to develop strategies for exploring those issues in a therapeutic context.

TCE 533 - Theories of Change: Community Leadership (offered every Spring)

3 credits

This course will explore how innovation and business for the common good are used in creative ways of service to communities in a variety of contexts. Students will examine how innovative practices, philanthropy, entrepreneurial leadership can be used to heal the heart of a community. A field research component will allow the student to begin to identify and construct the competencies and dimensions of their MATC apprenticeship.

TCE 534 - Practices of Change: Apprenticeship in the Arts

TCE 535 - Practices of Change: Apprenticeship in Community Development

TCE 536 - Practices of Change: Apprenticeship in Ministry

3 credits (offered every Fall, starting in 2023)

The MATC Apprenticeship is a faculty supervised community-based learning opportunity that forms the foundation of the capstone Integrative Project. Students will self-select a community development, ministry, or artistic organization that can help them fine tune their creative, entrepreneurial, and service skills. Based on the mission of the selected community service organizations, students will establish an applicable learning contract with an on-site supervisor.

TCE 537 - Christology in Historical Context (offered every Winter, starting in 2024) 3 credits

This course will explore the implications of particular Christologies on the global church, mission, and culture, with special reference to Church history. This course will cover the early development of trinitarian theology, the debates about the identity of Jesus Christ, and creeds. This course will also include explorations of more contemporary critiques about how Christology is formed and practiced in the church and world, engaging diverse theological perspectives. The goal of this class is to understand the historical formations and critiques of Christology, Soteriology, and Ecclesiology, so that the student might be able to design and construct life-giving theologies within the context of their vocational call and the communities in which they will serve.

TCE 538 - Mission & Faithful Presence (offered every Spring, starting in 2024) 3 credits

This course surveys the ongoing evolution of the theology and practice of mission. The course explores the history of theologies, frameworks, social constructs, and critiques of Christian mission, better enabling students to engage in mission without colonizing or harming. This course equips learners to personally participate, and guide others into joining the Triune God in God's liberative mission within the particularity of their context. Students are invited to explore the implications of Emmanuel (God is with us), as the heart of missional presence and practice.

TCE 540 - God & Persons (offered every other Fall)

2 Credits

This course explores the theological concept of persons, both divine and human. The goal of this class is to survey, compare and contrast, and evaluate various perspectives on personhood from the depth and breadth of the Christian tradition. This class will start with the doctrine of God, engage with the doctrine of creation (and eco theology), and end with theological anthropology (including the imago Dei and the imago Christi). This is a more doctrinally oriented class, but with an eye to the reality that all theology is contextual.

TCE 541 - Spirit & Trauma (offered every Winter; even years on campus, odd years online) 2 Credits

This course explores the intersection of theology and trauma studies/traumatology. In this class, students will read and compare theologies of the cross and theologies of the Holy Spirit to investigate how different theological approaches impact one's views on trauma, suffering, healing, redemption, witness, resilience, community, etc. This class is primarily focused on theological questions, but will purposefully seek out ways to bring together and find various modes of integrating theology and psychology (i.e., traumatology) throughout the class. Though the disciplines of theology and psychology utilize different vocabularies and methodologies, both seek out the wholeness and well-being of the human person, particularly in the wake of suffering, abuse, and trauma. Theology in this frame, should lead people toward liberation and shalom, especially when life and death are closely experienced and related.

TCE 542 - Christ & Hospitality (offered every other Spring)

This course looks at the relationship between the Christian Church (ecclesiology) and Jesus Christ (Christology). At stake in this conversation, is how our doctrines about the person and work of Christ impacts how people are formed in the practice of the Church and its liturgy. Doctrine, in this context, is not just an abstract exploration of proper belief about sin, atonement, soteriology, or ecclesiology, but, instead, the location of questioning, and sometimes reforming, how theory (theoria) and practice (praxis) are related to one another in the daily life of the body of Christ. The aim of this class is to show that all study of theology should lead to doxology (worship) and all doxology should lead to the fullness of life in Jesus Christ.

TCE 543 - God, Gender & Sexuality (offered every Fall; ; even years on campus, odd years online) 2 Credits

This course explores the interaction between the theological concepts of God, gender and sexuality. The goal of this class is to survey, compare and contrast, and evaluate various perspectives on God, gender, and sexuality from the depth and breadth of the Christian tradition, with special reference to critical social theory around gender and sexual identity. This class will examine the doctrine of God and Theological Anthropology, while engaging with how to critically examine doctrine through such lenses as feminist theology, queer theology and liberation theology. This is a contextually oriented class that seeks to articulate and re-contextualize the various loci of theology such as prolegomena, the Triune God, sin, human persons, sexuality, and gender.

TCE 544 - The Triune God & Creation (offered based on Instructor availability) 2 Credits

This course will explore the work and being of the Triune Creator (with special reference to the work of the Holy Spirit) and how understanding the Triune Creator helps to shape a dynamic eco-theology. The goal in this class is to survey the growing theological literature around the care of the earth. The lens of eco-theology intersects with the Doctrine of God and creation, Pneumatology, feminist theory, creation care, theology of place, agrarian theology, food, liberation theology, poverty and justice issues, etc. This class will weave context and doctrine together,

moving back and forth between the Missio Dei to love and perfect all persons and things in the world and attending to the call of the earth toward love, justice, mercy, and humility for all of the created order

TCE 545 - Beauty, Brokenness & The Cross (offered every other Spring) 2 Credits

This class will explore the concept of beauty. This exploration will be shaped by a theology of the cross (which encompasses the life, death, resurrection and ascension of Jesus) that not only leads us to a Christian understanding of beauty but to an understanding that beauty, to be true beauty, must have the power to identify, confront, and redeem that which is most ugly – even death itself. It is in this redemptive motion that we are brought to worship, which emerges from our acknowledgment of God's redemptive power within our lives.

TCE 546 - Constructive Theology: Issues, Critiques, and Doctrine (offered every Spring) 3 credits

This course prepares students to think critically about the task of doing constructive theology. The goal of this course is to survey, compare and contrast, and evaluate various contextual, constructive, and interdisciplinary perspectives on the doctrines of God, Creation, Theological Anthropology, and Pneumatology from the depth and breadth of the Christian tradition. Students will be able to articulate an understanding of what God is doing in the world, with implications for how they think, listen, live, and lead.

TCE 550 - Engaging Global Partnerships: Creating Conversations with Grassroots' Leaders in their Context (offered every Spring)

2 Credits

The cross cultural course will be hosted by Guatemalan leaders serving Guatemala City communities impacted by poverty, lack of education, homelessness, addiction and gang violence. Students will participate in pre-trip readings and film study focused on Latin American theology, history and culture and a one week cross cultural dialogue in Guatemala. Students will meet with local leaders to discuss, Gang Chaplaincy, street kids and human trafficking interventions, gender violence advocacy, education, trauma informed care and community development.

TCE 551R - Studio & Seminar: The Arts 3 credits
Description TBD

TCE 552 - Special Topics in Social Engagement & the Arts 3 credits
Description TBD

TCE 553 - Collaborative Community Development 3 credits
Description TBD

TCE 554 - Contextual Conversations for Community Transformation: Travel Course 3 credits

Description TBD

TCE 555 - Gathering & Becoming: The Gathering of Christian Communities 3 credits

Description TBD

TCE 556 - Listening & Leading: The Spiritual Care of Christian Communities 3 credits

Description TBD

TCE 570 - Book of Job (offered every other Winter)

2 Credits

Wisdom is seldom viewed in the Scripture as the mere acquisition of knowledge. Wisdom is knowledge applied to the vexing and complex situations of life far more as art than science. Nevertheless, wisdom is not solely subjective

or a matter of random, self-referential choice. It is often said, "Beauty is in the eye of the beholder" to imply there is no universal or essential consistency to the aesthetic impulse. The same is often assumed regarding wisdom. It is individual, subjective and not essentially related to something greater than itself. Wisdom as found in the book of Job requires us to see the limits of wisdom, the necessity of relational dialogue, and an openness simultaneously to wrestle and submit to the work of our redeemer God. Therefore, this course will consider the role of wisdom in the context of therapy, pastoral service and social advocacy. Specifically, this class will look at how one develops wisdom and we may use it for critiquing various approaches to conflict, therapy and community.

TCE 575 - Special Topics (offered as needed based on faculty interest)

1 or 2 Credits

A full course description is available on individual course syllabi and is particular to each course.

FACULTY & INSTRUCTIONAL STAFF

Core Faculty

Dan B. Allender, Ph.D.
Professor of Counseling Psychology, Founding President
B.A., Ohio Wesleyan College
MDiv., Westminster Theological Seminary
M.S. Barry College
Ph.D., Michigan State University

O'Donnell Day, Ph.D.
Associate Professor of Counseling Psychology
B.A., Mississippi State University
M.A., California Graduate Psychoanalytic Institute
Ph.D., Seattle Pacific University

Dwight Friesen, D.Min Associate Professor of Practical Theology Cert., Biblical Studies Capernwray Hall B.S., Alliance University College M.A., Trinity International University D.Min., George Fox Evangelical Seminary

Monique Gadson, Ph.D.
Assistant Professor of Counseling Psychology
Ph.D., Amridge University
M.S., Richmont Graduate University
M.S., Troy State University
B.S., University of Alabama

Cheryl Goodwin, M.L.S.
Director of Library Services
Director of Institutional Assessment
B.A., University of California, San Diego
M.L.S., University of Washington

Paul Hoard, Ph.D.
Assistant Professor of Counseling Psychology
Ph.D., Regent University
M.A., Grace College Graduate School
B.A., Grace College

Stephanie Neill, Psy.D.
Associate Professor of Counseling Psychology
A.A., Cottey College
B.S., Montana State University
M.A., Biola University
Psy.D., Rosemead School of Psychology

Ron Ruthruff, D.Min.
Associate Professor of Theology & Culture
B.A. Western Washington University
M.S., Pepperdine University
D.Min., Gordon Conwell Theological Seminary

Doug Shirley, Ed.D.
Assistant Professor of Counseling Psychology
B.A., Messiah College
MDiv., The Seattle School of Theology & Psychology
M.Ed., Temple University
Ed.D., Argosy University

Michelle Stearns, Ph.D. Associate Professor of Theology B.M.A., Pacific Lutheran University M.C.S., Regent College Ph.D., University of St. Andrews

For Affiliate and Adjunct Faculty and other members of the Instructional Team please visit our website directory at https://theseattleschool.edu/directory/category/faculty-instructional-staff/

BOARD OF TRUSTEES, ADMINISTRATORS & STAFF

Board of Trustees

Shannon Eckmann, Chair - Portland, OR
Fil Anderson – Greensboro, NC
Alvin Chu - Washington D.C.
Lisa Maranto – Houston, TX
Joel Murphy – Chicago, IL
Scott Owen – Monument, CO

Cole Dawson - Sunriver, OR

Dan Allender, Founding President (Non-voting) – Bainbridge Island, WA

Jack Easterling – St. Louis, MO

Keith Anderson, President Emeritus (Non-voting) – Coupeville, WA

Winston Gooden - Washington D.C. J. Derek McNeil, ex officio - Seattle, WA

A full list of Administrators and Staff of The Seattle School, including The Allender Center and the Resilient Leaders Project, can be found on our website directory at:

https://theseattleschool.edu/directory/category/administrative-staff/

2022-2023 ACADEMIC CALENDAR

Fall Trimester 2022 - September 12 - December 16	
INTERNSHIP/Case conference Classes Start	August 29
Labor Day Holiday	September 5
New Student Orientation	September 8
(Re)Orientation	September 9
Fall Term Residency (ALL cohorts low-residency students)	September 14-17**
Convocation (ALL students)	September 17
WEEKLY CLASSES START (low-residency and on-campus)	September 19
Last day to drop a weekly class without a "W"	September 30
Last day to receive a 100% refund for any class	September 30
Last day to receive a 50% refund for any class	October 7
Last day to drop a weekly class with a "W"	October 28
Online registration opens for Winter Term	November 16
Thanksgiving Holiday	November 23-25
Last Day of Classes	December 16
Christmas Holiday	December 17 - January 8
Fall term grades available on Populi	December 29
Winter Trimester 2023 - January 9 - April 7	
WEEKLY CLASSES START (low-residency and on-campus)	January 9
Winter Term Residency (if required)	January 11-14 (end of first week)**
Martin Luther King Jr. Holiday	January 16
Stanley J. Grenz Lecture Series	Dates TBD
Last day to drop a weekly class without a "W"	January 20
Last day to receive a 100% refund for any class	January 20
Last day to receive a 50% refund for any class	January 27
Last day to drop a weekly class with a "W"	February 17
Online registration opens for Spring Term	March 15
Last Day of Classes	April 6
Good Friday Holiday	April 7
Winter term grades available on Populi	April 19
Spring Trimester 2023 - April 10 - June 23	
Theology Travel Residencies	April 10-April 23
WEEKLY CLASSES START (low-residency and on-campus)	April 24
Spring Term Residency (if required)	April 26-29 (end of 1st week)**
Last day to drop a weekly class without a "W"	May 5
Last day to receive a 100% refund for any class	May 5
Last day to receive a 50% refund for any class	May 12
Memorial Day Holiday	May 29
Last day to drop a weekly class with a "W"	June 2
Integrative Project Symposium	June 22